
abc 

 
 

Agenda 

 

Page 1 

Audit and Procurement Committee 
 

Time and Date 
4.00 pm on Monday, 23rd September, 2013 
 
Place 
Diamond Room 2 - Council House 
 

 
 

1. Apologies   
 
 

2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 

3. Minutes of Previous Meetings  (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

  

(a) To agree the Minutes from the meeting of the Audit and Procurement 
 Committee held on 5 August 2013 

 
(b) To agree the Minutes from the meeting of the Audit and Procurement 

 Committee held on 19 August 2013 
 

(c) Matters Arising from the above. 
 
 

4. Outstanding Issues and Work Programme 2013/14  (Pages 11 - 16) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 
 
 

5. Audit Findings Report, 2012/13  (Pages 17 - 52) 
 

 Report of the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton (attached) 
 
 

6. Statement of Accounts 2012/13  (Pages 53 - 58) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 
 
 

7. Revenue Monitoring Report and Corporate Capital Monitoring and Treasury 
Management Report 2012/13  (Pages 59 - 80) 

 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 
 
 

8. Annual Audit Letter Update (Audit 2011/12)  (Pages 81 - 86) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 

9. RIPA (Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act) Annual Report  (Pages 87 - 98) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 
 
 

10. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as matters 
of urgency because of the special circumstances involved.   
 
 

Private Business 
 

11. Confirmation of Minutes  (Pages 99 - 100) 
 

 (a) To confirm the minutes of the Audit and Procurement Committee Meeting held on 
24 July 2013 
 
(b) Matters arising from the minutes 
 
 

12. Procurement - Monthly Progress Report  (Pages 101 - 102) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 
 

 

Chris West, Executive Director, Resources, Council House Coventry 
 
Friday, 13 September 2013 
 
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Hugh 
Peacocke  
 
 
Membership: Councillors S Bains (Deputy Chair), L Harvard, R Sandy, T Sawdon, B Singh 
and H Sweet (Chair) 
 
  
 

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms 

 
If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR it you would like this information in another format or 

language please contact us. 
 

Hugh Peacocke 
Telephone: (024) 7683 3080 
e-mail:hugh.peacocke@coventry.gov.uk 
 



Coventry City Council 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Procurement Committee held at 

4.00 pm. on 5 August 2013 
 
 
Present: 
Committee Members: Councillor Sweet (Chair) 
 Councillor Bains (Deputy Chair) 
 Councillor Harvard 
 Councillor Sandy 
 Councillor Sawdon 
 Councillor Thay 
 
Employees (by Directorate): 
Finance & Legal Services:  M. Burns, L. Commane, J Evans and S. Mangan 
Customer & Workforce Services: H. Peacocke 
 
Public business 
 
21. Apologies 

 
Councillor B. Singh  
 

22. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

23. Minutes of Audit and Procurement Committee 8 July 2013 
 
The Minutes of the Audit and Procurement Committee held on 8 July 2013 were 
agreed and signed as a true record. 
 

24. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
RESOLVED to exclude the press and public under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 relating to the private report on Item 12 on the agenda: 
Procurement – Monthly Progress Report, on the grounds that it involved the likely 
disclosure of information defined in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act as it 
contained information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) and that in all circumstances 
of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 
 

25. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Procurement – Monthly Progress Report  
 
The Committee received a Briefing Note from the Director of Finance and Legal 
Services on procurement matters. 
 
It was noted that there was a procurements savings target of £8M over the coming 3 
years, comprising £2m per annum for 2013/14, an additional £3m from 2014/15 and 
a further £3m per annum from 205/16. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee approve the July monthly progress report on 
procurement.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



26. Outstanding Issues and Work Programme 2013/14 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Customer and Workforce 
Services and Director of Finance and Legal Services on outstanding issues and the 
Work Programme 2013/14.  
 
It was noted that items 1 to 8 were due at the Committee but that item no. 1  
(Network Security) would now be considered at the November meeting within the 
Internal Audit Quarterly Progress report. Item no. 8, Safeguarding Awareness, had 
been delayed due to changes in key personnel and this would now be considered 
at the December meeting. 
 
The Committee noted that the agendas for the November and December meetings 
looked light and it was proposed that these 2 meetings be amalgamated, with the 
date to be agreed with the Chair. 
 
An extra meeting would be held on 19 August to consider issues arising from the 
Chair’s JEEP (Justify Expenditure, Examine Performance) Campaign which had the 
potential to achieve savings for the Council. 
 
RESOLVED that the outstanding issues and The Work Programme (2013-14), 
as amended, by agreed by the Committee. 
 

27. Internal Audit Report Update - Council Tax Exemptions and Discounts  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Finance and Legal Services 
on Council Tax Exemptions and Discounts. .  An audit review in 2012-13 highlighted 
a number of significant concerns that required urgent action. This report highlighted 
progress made since the audit including the fact that as a result of the audit findings 
and a subsequent project set up by the Assistant Directors responsible for Revenue 
and Benefits and Special Projects Finance, revised bills to the value of £105,000 
had been issued to those customers where it has been established that they are no 
longer entitled to a discount or exemption. 
 
The report highlighted that the project is still on-going and that further work was still 
required to determine the scale of the issue and the longer solution to addressing 
the issues raised. 
 
The Committee welcomed the work to date but requested a report in January 2014, 
to provide an update on the action being taken to address the full concerns raised in 
the audit. In particular, the Committee were keen that officers focused consideration 
on more proactive processes to encourage customers to notify the Council when 
their circumstances change and mean they no longer are entitled to a discount or 
exemption. 
 
RESOLVED that the Audit and Procurement Committee approve the internal 
audit update on Council Tax and Exemptions. 
 

28. Audit Committee Annual Report to Council 2012-2013 
 
The meeting heard that the Committee was required under the Council’s 
constitution and the Committee’s terms of Reference to submit an annual report of 
its activities to full Council. The Director of Finance and Legal Services in 
consultation with the Chair had drafted the report for consideration and approval by 
the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee approve the Annual Report 2012-13 for full 
Council. 

Page 4



 
29. Annual Fraud Report 2012-2013 

 

The Director of Finance and Legal Services presented the Report which was a 
summary of the Council's anti-fraud activity for the financial year 2012-13, focusing 
primarily on corporate and benefit fraud. The Committee noted the results of anti- 
fraud activity during the year and noted the continued improvement in performance 
of the Benefit Fraud Team. In response to discussions around employee fraud, the 
Committee asked officers to consider whether current systems in respect of 
ensuring employees have the right to work in the UK were sufficiently robust and 
also to consider whether tracking devices should be standard across all Council 
vehicles. It was agreed that briefing notes would be produced on these matters for 
consideration by the Committee.  
RESOLVED that the Audit and Procurement Committee approve the outcome of the 
Council’s response to fraud activity during 2012-13. 
 

30. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal Audit   
 

The Committee considered a report from the Director of Finance and Legal Services 
on the outcome of the various activities and assessments for the period 2012-13, to 
aid the Audit and Procurement Committee in undertaking the review of the 
effectiveness of the Council's System of Internal Audit, on behalf of the Council.  
 

The meeting noted that Officers offer of training and advice to all members of the 
Committee in order to carry out their roles on the Audit and Procurement 
Committee.  
 

RESOLVED that the Audit and Procurement Committee: 
 

1. Approve the findings of the 2012-13 review of the effectiveness of 
          the System of Internal Audit.  

2. Endorse the areas for development highlighted in the Report. 
 

31. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
32. 
 

 

Internal Audit Update Report 
 

The Director of Finance and Legal Services provided an update on a number of 
recently completed audits that were considered high priority by the Audit Committee 
in 2012-13. These were deemed high priority as a result of the level of assurance 
provided when the areas were last audited by Internal Audit. 
 

The four audit reviews in question were: 

• CareDirector (Expenditure) 

• Housing Benefit Overpayments 

• Complaints 

• Reed Recruitment Agency – Contract Monitoring 
 

The Committee noted the findings of the report including the significant progress 
that had been made in addressing audit actions across all four audits.   

 

RESOLVED that the Audit and Procurement Committee approve the progress 
made in these audits. 
 
Any Other Public Business   
 
There were no other items of public business. 

 
      (The Meeting closed at 5.15 pm) 

 
Signed: ____________________                                       Date: _____________________  

Chair. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

 

Coventry City Council 
 

Minutes of the Audit and Procurement Committee held on 19 August 2013 
 

Members Present:  H Sweet (Chair)  
S Bains, J Blundell and R Sandy,  
 

Other Members 
Present: 

  D Gannon 

 
Employees Present:  M Reeves, F Collingham , J West (Chief Executive’s) 

H Abraham, B Hastie, S Iannantouni and H Peacocke 
(Resources) 
 

 
33.   
 

Apologies 
 
Councillors T Sawdon and B Singh 
 

34.   
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
None 
 

35.  
 

JEEP (Justify Expenditure, Examine Performance) Campaign - Initial Report 
 
The Committee considered a report from the Director of finance and Legal 
Services which summarised the actions identified so far as part of the JEEP 
(Justify Expenditure, Examine Performance) Campaign and were in the process 
of being implemented by management. 
 
The Campaign was started by the Chair in June and aimed at identifying 
everyday changes that can be made to save cash and to help the Council 
become more efficient. Sixty suggestions had already been received and 
categorised as follows: 

 1. Things we can already do 

2. Matters which required further exploration by officers 

3. Matter which required political approval and  

4. Some which were not feasible 
 
It was agreed to communicate with each of the people who had responded to the 
campaign. 
 
It was agreed that JEEP would be a standard item on the committee’s agenda. 
 
Resolved that the Audit and Procurement Committee  
 
(1) Approve the way forward proposed in the report for managers to 

implement the actions identified.   
 

Page 7



- 2 - 

 

(2) Endorse the way forward for further actions to come forward to Audit 
and Procurement Committee at an appropriate point in the decision 
making process. 

 
36.   
 

Citivision Magazine 
 
The Committee considered a report from the Executive Director, Resources, 
which outlined the context and rationale for considering options around the future 
of Citivision magazine. 
 
The Council issued the magazine quarterly to 127,000 premises in Coventry and 
the Report put forward 4 options: 
1. Continue as at present 
2. Reduce to 3 issues per annum 
3. Reduce to 2 issues per annum 
4. Publish online only. 
 
RESOLVED that options for the future of Citivision are referred to Cabinet 
Member (Policy, Leadership and Governance) for consideration at a future 
meeting. 
 

37.   
 

Reduction in spend of print related promotional literature 
 
The Committee considered a report from the Director of finance and Legal 
Services which outlined the context and rationale for considering options around 
the reduction in spend of print related promotional literature. 
 
The report presented proposals to reduce the amount spent on print by limiting 
the number of paper items and instead making them available for download from 
the Council’s website as well as promoting events more effectively through the 
use of online communications tools including social media. 
 
  Resolved that the Audit and Procurement Committee recommend that the 
Centralised Communications budget be reduced by £50,000 per annum 

 
38.    Greater use of Salary Sacrifice Schemes  
    
                The Committee considered a briefing note update on salary sacrifice employee        

offer.  
 

It was noted that the Council had an employee salary sacrifice cycle offer and also 
a child care voucher salary sacrifice offer which were popular with employees. 

  
  The possibility of a further salary sacrifice offer in the form of IT equipment (lap 

tops, tablets and mobile phones) was also being investigated.   
 

RESOLVED that an IT equipment employee salary sacrifice offer continues 
to be moved forward and implemented once a suitable supplier is found. 

 
 

Page 8



- 3 - 

 

 
39.   
 

"Paperless" Meetings 
 
The Committee considered a briefing note on savings and efficiencies which 
could be achieved by operating “paperless” meetings. 
 
RESOLVED that the Audit and Procurement Committee endorses the 
proposal that electronic working is rolled out in a phased manner, as 
follows: 
 
Phase 1: 

1. Individual Cabinet Member meetings and Advisory Panels 

2. Cabinet Briefing and all other briefings/ agenda conferences, etc. 

3. Scrutiny boards (all 5) plus Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee 

4. Audit and procurement Committee 
 

Phase 2 – 3 months’ later: 

1. Cabinet 

2. Health and Well-Being Board 

3. Ethics committee 

 
Phase 3 – in 6 months: 

1. Council 

2. All other committees and bodies (excluding Planning and Licensing 
& regulatory, for now) 

 
40.   
 

The Chair thanked the Officers for their contribution to the JEEP campaign and 
assisting in formulating the proposals before the meeting.  
 

41.  Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved. 
 
None. 
 

 
(Meeting closed at 16.45) 
  
 
Signed: ______________    Date:_______________ 

            Chair 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



abc                                       Public Report                         
 

 

Audit and Procurement Committee   23 September 2013 
 
Director Approving Submission of the report:
Executive Director, Resources. 
 
Ward(s) affected:
None 
 
Title:
Work Programme 2013/14 
 
 
Is this a key decision?
No 
 
 
 
Executive Summary:
 
This report sets out the Outstanding issues for the Audit and Procurement Committee and the 
Committee’s Work Programme for the rest of the Municipal Year.
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the Audit and Procurement Committee notes the outstanding issues and approves the 
Committee’s Work Programme.
 
List of Appendices included 
 
1. Outstanding issues for the Audit and Procurement Committee at 5 August 2013
 
2. Work Programme 2013/14 for the Audit and Procurement Committee (Excluding   External 

Audit). 
 
Other useful background papers: 
Audit Committee Minutes 
 
Has it or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
No 
 
Has it, or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or other 
body?  
No 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



 

 2 

 
 
 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
No 
 
 
 
Report author(s): Hugh Peacocke

Name and job title: Governance Services Officer

Directorate: Resources  
 
Tel and email contact: 024 7683 3080, hugh.peacocke@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors: 
 

    

     

Names of approvers: 
(officers and members) 
 

    

     

 
 

This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings  
 
 

Page 12



 
Outstanding Issues for Audit and Procurement Committee 16 September 2013 
 

1 Network Security 
 

The Committee agreed to receive a 
further report following the follow up 
audit. 
 

(Minute 35/12 of the Audit Committee 
refers) 

 
 
November 2013  

 
 
Steve Mangan 

2 Corporate Risk Register Update – 
Safeguarding Awareness 
 
The Committee requested an update 
report on the current position in 
respect of the safeguarding 
Awareness, in light of concerns on lack 
of progress. 
 
(Minute 59/12 of the Audit Committee 
refers) 

 
 
 
December 2013 

 
 
 
Steve Mangan  

3 Council Tax Exemptions and 
Discounts 
 
The Committee requested internal 
audit to continue to review this matter 
and report back in January 2014, prior 
to the next billing year, from March 
2014. 
 
(Minute 27/13 refers) 

 
 
 
January 2014 

 
 
 
Janice Evans / Steve 
Mangan 

4 Arena Risk Update 
 
The Committee requested a further 
update on the management of the 
Arena Coventry Limited / Coventry City 
Football club corporate risk. 
 
(Minute 60/12 of the Audit Committee 
refers) 

 
 
October 2013 

 
 
Barry Hastie 

5 Progress on Matters Raised by the 
2011/12 Annual Audit Letter 
 
The Committee requested a further 
report on issues considered in this 
report. 
 
(Minute 74/12 of the Audit Committee 
refers) 
 

 
 
 
September 2013  

 
 
 
Paul Jennings 

 
 

 Subject Date  Responsible Officer(s) 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Coventry City Council

Audit and Procurement Committee Workplan 2013-14

Stakeholder Report 03/06/13 08/07/13 05/08/13 19/08/13 23/09/13 07/10/13 04/11/13 02/12/13 06/01/14 03/02/14 03/03/14 07/04/13 12/05/14

Internal Audit Internal Audit Annual Report 2012-13

Quarterly Internal Audit Progress Reports 2013-14 

Internal Audit Recommendation Tracking Report

Annual Audit Plan 2014-15

Risk Management Corporate Risk Register Update

Corporate Risk - Nuckle Update

Corporate Risk - Safeguarding Awareness Update 

Fraud Fraud Annual Report 2012-13 

Half Yearly Fraud Update 2013-14

External Audit (Grant Thornton) Informing the Audit Risk Assessment

Annual Governance Report

Annual Audit Letter

Grant Certification Work

Annual Audit Plan

Accountancy Statement of Accounts 2012-13 

Revenue and Capital Out-Turn 2012-13

Revenue Monitoring Report and Corporate Capital 

Monitoring and Treasury Management Report 2012-13

Annual Audit Letter Update

Transformation Programme Financial Savings

Procurement Progress Report

Post and Fastprint

JEEP Update

Others Annual Governance Statement 2012-13

Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal Audit 

2012-13

Annual Audit Committee Report 2012-13

Council Tax Discounts / Exemptions Update

RIPA Annual Report

Covert Monitoring of Employees Policy Statement

Arena Coventry Limited Update

Training

P
age 15



P
age 16

T
his page is intentionally left blank



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

.

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 F

in
d

in
gs

fo
r 

C
o
ve

n
tr

y 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

J
o

h
n

 G
re

g
o

ry

D
ir

e
c
to

r

T
0

1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
3

3
3

E
 

jo
h

n
.g

re
g

o
ry

@
u

k
.g

t.
c
o
m

T
o

n
y
 P

a
rk

s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
0

1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
3

0
1

E
 

to
n

y
.l
.p

a
rk

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

P
a

u
l 
H

a
rv

e
y

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

T
0

1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
3

2
9

E
 

p
a

u
l.
m

.h
a

rv
e

y
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

3
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
2

T
h
e 
co
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 r
el
at
e 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 m
at
te
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 c
am
e 
to
 o
u
r 

at
te
n
ti
o
n
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
co
n
d
u
ct
 o
f 
o
u
r 
n
o
rm
al
 a
u
d
it
 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

d
es
ig
n
ed
 p
ri
m
ar
ily
 f
o
r 
th
e 
p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
ex
p
re
ss
in
g 
o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 

st
at
em
en
ts
.
O
u
r 
au
d
it
 i
s 
n
o
t 
d
es
ig
n
ed
 t
o
 t
es
t 
al
l i
n
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 o
r 
id
en
ti
fy
 a
ll 

ar
ea
s 
o
f 
co
n
tr
o
l 
w
ea
kn
es
s.
 H
o
w
ev
er
, 
w
h
er
e,
 a
s 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
te
st
in
g,
 w
e 
id
en
ti
fy
 

an
y 
co
n
tr
o
l 
w
ea
kn
es
se
s,
 w
e 
w
ill
 r
ep
o
rt
 t
h
es
e 
to
 y
o
u
.  
In
 c
o
n
se
q
u
en
ce
, o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 

ca
n
n
o
t 
b
e 
re
lie
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
o
 d
is
cl
o
se
 d
ef
al
ca
ti
o
n
s 
o
r 
o
th
er
 i
rr
eg
u
la
ri
ti
es
, o
r 
to
 

in
cl
u
d
e 
al
l 
p
o
ss
ib
le
 i
m
p
ro
ve
m
en
ts
 i
n
 i
n
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
th
at
 a
 m
o
re
 e
xt
en
si
ve
 

sp
ec
ia
l e
xa
m
in
at
io
n
 m
ig
h
t 
id
en
ti
fy
.

W
e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
ac
ce
p
t 
an
y 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
an
y 
lo
ss
 o
cc
as
io
n
ed
 t
o
 a
n
y 
th
ir
d
 p
ar
ty
 

ac
ti
n
g,
 o
r 
re
fr
ai
n
in
g 
fr
o
m
 a
ct
in
g 
o
n
 t
h
e 
b
as
is
 o
f 
th
e 
co
n
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
, 
as
 

th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 w
as
 n
o
t 
p
re
p
ar
ed
 f
o
r,
 n
o
r 
in
te
n
d
ed
 f
o
r,
 a
n
y 
o
th
er
 p
u
rp
o
se
.

Page 18



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
3

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 s
u

m
m

ar
y

4

2.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
gs

7

3.
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
 

18

4.
F

ee
s,

 n
o

n
 a

u
d

it
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d

 i
n

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

22

5.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
au

d
it

 m
at

te
rs

25

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
 

A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n

B
  

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

C
  

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
au

d
it

 f
in

d
in

gs

Page 19



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
:
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 20



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
5

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

P
u

r
p

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

r
t

T
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

ke
y 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
au

d
it

 o
f 

C
o

ve
n

tr
y 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 (

'th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

') 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3.
 I

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 u

se
d

 t
o

 r
ep

o
rt

 o
u

r 
au

d
it

 f
in

d
in

gs
 t

o
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
o

se
 c

h
ar

ge
d

 w
it

h
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 o

n
 

A
u

d
it

in
g 

26
0 

(I
S

A
).

 

U
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
's

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

A
u

d
it

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 r
ep

o
rt

 
w

h
et

h
er

, i
n

 o
u

r 
o

p
in

io
n

, t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
n

t 
a 

tr
u

e 
an

d
 f

ai
r 

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
, i

ts
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 i

n
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
n

d
 w

h
et

h
er

 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 p

ro
p

er
ly

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

IP
F

A
 C

o
d

e 
o

f 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

o
n

 L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g.
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 r
ea

ch
 a

 f
o

rm
al

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 
o

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

as
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
 s

ec
u

re
 e

co
n

o
m

y,
 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

in
 it

s 
u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

 (
th

e 
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
).

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n

In
 t

h
e 

co
n

d
u

ct
 o

f 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 w

e 
h

av
e 

n
o

t 
h

ad
 t

o
 a

lt
er

 o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n

ed
 a

u
d

it
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
, w

h
ic

h
 w

e 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 y

o
u

 i
n

 o
u

r 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

. 

O
u

r 
au

d
it

 i
s 

su
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

lt
h

o
u

gh
 w

e 
ar

e 
fi

n
al

is
in

g 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 in

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ea

s:
 

•
o

b
ta

in
in

g 
an

d
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
fi

n
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

le
tt

er
 o

f 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
•

u
p

d
at

in
g 

o
u

r 
p

o
st

 b
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t 

ev
en

ts
 r

ev
ie

w
, t

o
 t

h
e 

d
at

e 
o

f 
si

gn
in

g 
th

e 
o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
•

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
.

W
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 d
ra

ft
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 a

cc
o

m
p

an
yi

n
g 

w
o

rk
in

g 
p

ap
er

s 
at

 t
h

e 
st

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
au

d
it

, i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ag
re

ed
 t

im
et

ab
le

.

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
st
a
te
m
en
ts
 o
p
in
io
n

W
e 

an
ti

ci
p

at
e 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

an
 u

n
q

u
al

if
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

W
e 

h
av

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 o
n

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 r
ep

o
rt

ed
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 (

d
et

ai
ls

 a
re

 r
ec

o
rd

ed
 in

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 2

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

).
  

T
h

e 
d

ra
ft

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 r

ec
o

rd
ed

 n
et

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 o

f 
£

34
7,

71
9k

; t
h

e 
au

d
it

ed
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
h

o
w

 n
et

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 o

f 
£

34
8,

79
5k

.  
T

h
is

 c
h

an
ge

 r
el

at
es

 t
o

 t
h

e 
o

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
a 

cr
ed

it
o

r 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f 

C
al

u
d

o
n

 C
as

tl
e 

S
ch

o
o

l 
to

 
ac

ad
em

y 
st

at
u

s.
  

W
e 

h
av

e 
al

so
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
ve

 
th

e 
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts
.

T
h

e 
ke

y 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
o

m
 o

u
r 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
ar

e:
•

th
er

e 
ar

e 
n

o
 u

n
ad

ju
st

ed
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

.  
A

ll 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
au

d
it

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 m
ad

e 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

fi
n

al
 s

et
 o

f 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.
•

th
e 

au
d

it
 d

id
 n

o
t 

id
en

ti
fy

 a
n

y 
m

at
er

ia
l 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
.

•
th

e 
d

ra
ft

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 w
er

e 
o

f 
go

o
d

 q
u

al
it

y 
an

d
 a

n
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
o

n
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
ye

ar
s.

 T
h

er
e 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 t

h
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
au

d
it

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

.  

F
u

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

re
 s

et
 o

u
t 

in
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 2
 o

f 
th

is
 r

ep
o

rt
.

Page 21



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
6

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

V
a
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
o
n
ey
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n

W
e 

ar
e 

p
le

as
ed

 t
o

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
h

at
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 o
u

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

to
 s

ec
u

re
 e

co
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

in
 i

ts
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

, w
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
 

to
 g

iv
e 

an
 u

n
q

u
al

if
ie

d
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

.

F
u

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

l 
o

f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
 i

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 3
 o

f 
th

is
 

re
p

o
rt

.

W
h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 (
W
G
A
)

W
e 

w
ill

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f 
th

e 
W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 i
n

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

n
at

io
n

al
 t

im
et

ab
le

.

O
b
je
ct
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e 
a
cc
o
u
n
ts

W
e 

h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

n
 o

b
je

ct
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 a

 l
o

ca
l 

el
ec

to
r,

 i
n

 
re

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

ls
 c

h
ar

ge
s 

fo
r 

in
st

al
lin

g 
d

ro
p

p
ed

 k
er

b
s.

 W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
fi

n
al

is
in

g 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
is

.

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
is

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
, a

ss
es

sm
en

t,
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

o
f 

ri
sk

, a
n

d
 f

o
r 

d
ev

el
o

p
in

g,
 o

p
er

at
in

g 
an

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l.

O
u

r 
au

d
it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 t
es

t 
al

l 
in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

r 
id

en
ti

fy
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

o
f 

co
n

tr
o

l w
ea

kn
es

s.
  

H
o

w
ev

er
, w

h
er

e,
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
te

st
in

g,
 w

e 
id

en
ti

fy
 a

n
y 

co
n

tr
o

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s,

 w
e 

re
p

o
rt

 t
h

es
e 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 h
as

 n
o

t 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
n

y 
co

n
tr

o
l 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

w
is

h
 t

o
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
fo

r 
yo

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

. 

T
h
e
 w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

M
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
u

d
it

 a
n

d
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 
ec

o
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

in
 i

ts
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 L

eg
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s.

W
e 

h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

a 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 s
et

 o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e 
ac

ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 i

n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

. R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
n

d
 a

gr
ee

d
 w

it
h

 
th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 L

eg
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ce

 t
ea

m
.

A
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
m

e
n
t

W
e 

w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 t
ak

e 
th

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

to
 r

ec
o

rd
 o

u
r 

ap
p

re
ci

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ce

 t
ea

m
 a

n
d

 o
th

er
 s

ta
ff

 d
u

ri
n

g 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
.

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P

S
ep
te
m
b
er
20
13

Page 22



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 2
:
A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 23



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
8

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
p

re
se

n
t 

o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
gs

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

m
at

te
rs

 a
n

d
 r

is
ks

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g 
st

ag
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 a
ro

se
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

co
u

rs
e 

o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

. W
e 

se
t 

o
u

t 
o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
p

ag
es

 t
h

e 
w

o
rk

 w
e 

h
av

e 
p

er
fo

rm
ed

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
gs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 r

is
ks

 w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 in

 o
u

r 
au

d
it

 p
la

n
, 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

o
n

 1
0 

A
p

ri
l 2

01
3.

  
W

e 
al

so
 s

et
 o

u
t 

th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

au
d

it
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

gs
 in

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

W
e 

h
av

e 
n

o
t 

h
ad

 t
o

 a
lt

er
 o

r 
ch

an
ge

 o
u

r 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 a
s 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 y

o
u

 o
n

 1
0 

A
p

ri
l 2

01
3.

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

W
e 

an
ti

ci
p

at
e 

th
at

 w
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

it
h

 a
n

 u
n

m
o

d
if

ie
d

 o
p

in
io

n
. O

u
r 

au
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

 is
 s

et
 o

u
t 

in
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 B

. W
h

ile
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

o
rk

in
g 

to
w

ar
d

s 
d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

o
b

je
ct

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u

n
ts

 b
y 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
w

e 
is

su
e 

th
e 

o
p

in
io

n
, i

f 
th

is
 is

 n
o

t 
ac

h
ie

ve
d

, w
e 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e 
ab

le
 t

o
 f

o
rm

al
ly

 c
er

ti
fy

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ti
m

e 
as

 
is

su
in

g 
th

e 
o

p
in

io
n

. T
h

is
 w

ill
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

an
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

la
st

 p
ar

ag
ra

p
h

 o
f 

th
e 

w
o

rd
in

g 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, t

o
 s

ay
 t

h
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

u
n

ab
le

 t
o

 f
o

rm
al

ly
 c

er
ti

fy
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
re

as
o

n
 w

h
y.

 

Page 24



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
9

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs
 a
g
ai
n
st
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s

R
is

k
s

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 g
a

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 a
ri

s
in

g

1
. 

Im
p

ro
p

e
r

re
v
e

n
u

e
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 m

is
s
ta

te
d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

p
e

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 

�
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

n
o

t 
a

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
. 
W

e
 c

a
n

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 r
e

b
u

t 

th
e

 p
re

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
.

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
.

2
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
v
e

rr
id

e
 o

f 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 o

f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

�
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 e
n

tr
ie

s

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

v
e

rr
id

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

e
 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 

o
f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

ie
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

is
s
u

e
s
.

W
e
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
la

te
r 

in
 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 

a
n

d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 

ju
d

g
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

"S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

o
ft

en
 r

el
at

e 
to

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
n

o
n

-r
o

u
ti

n
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 j

u
d

gm
en

ta
l 

m
at

te
rs

. N
o

n
-r

o
u

ti
n

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s 

ar
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
th

at
 a

re
 u

n
u

su
al

, e
it

h
er

 d
u

e 
to

 s
iz

e 
o

r 
n

at
u

re
, a

n
d

 t
h

at
 t

h
er

ef
o

re
 o

cc
u

r 
in

fr
eq

u
en

tl
y.

 J
u

d
gm

en
ta

l m
at

te
rs

 m
ay

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g 
es

ti
m

at
es

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
er

e 
is

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

u
n

ce
rt

ai
n

ty
" 

(I
S

A
 3

15
).

 

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
d

et
ai

l 
o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

ri
sk

s 
o

f 
m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
.  

A
s 

w
e 

n
o

te
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 
p

la
n

, t
h

er
e 

ar
e 

tw
o

 
p

re
su

m
ed

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
p

p
lic

ab
le

 t
o

 a
ll 

au
d

it
s 

u
n

d
er

 a
u

d
it

in
g 

st
an

d
ar

d
s.

Page 25



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
10

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs
 a
g
ai
n
st
 o
th
er
 r
is
k
s

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 c

y
c

le
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ri
s

k
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 g

a
in

e
d

 &
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 a

ri
s

in
g

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

te
d

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
is

 r
is

k
:

�
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

y
c
le

�
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 t
o

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

o
s
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly

�
te

s
te

d
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

ly
 t
e

s
te

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

(y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 c

re
d

it
o

rs
)

C
re

d
it
o

rs
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
te

d
 o

r 
n

o
t 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
p

e
ri

o
d

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
is

 r
is

k
:

�
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

y
c
le

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

ly
 t
e

s
te

d
 c

re
d

it
o

rs

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
R

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 n

o
t 

c
o

rr
e

c
t

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
is

 r
is

k
:

�
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

y
c
le

�
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 t
o

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

o
s
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly

�
te

s
te

d
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

ly
 t
e

s
te

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
d

et
ai

l 
o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e 

o
th

er
 r

is
ks

 o
f 

m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
.  

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s,
 t

o
ge

th
er

 w
it

h
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

sp
o

n
se

s,
 a

re
 a

tt
ac

h
ed

 a
t 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
. 

Page 26



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
11

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs
 a
g
ai
n
st
 o
th
er
 r
is
k
s

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 c

y
c

le
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ri
s

k
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 g

a
in

e
d

 &
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 a

ri
s

in
g

W
e

lf
a

re
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

W
e
lf
a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 im
p

ro
p

e
rl

y

c
o

m
p

u
te

d

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
is

 r
is

k
:

�
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

y
c
le

�
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
's

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
C

o
u

n
t 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
.

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

P
P

E
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 n

o
t 
v
a

lid
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
is

 r
is

k
:

�
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

y
c
le

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

ly
 t
e

s
te

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

R
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
n

o
t

c
o

rr
e

c
t

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
is

 r
is

k
:

�
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 

k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

y
c
le

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

ly
 t
e

s
te

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

Page 27



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
12

A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g 
p
o
lic
ie
s,
 e
st
im
at
es
 &
 j
u
d
g
em
en
ts
 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
a

re
a

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
o

li
c

y
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c

o
g

n
it

io
n

�
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 

a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
.

�
F

e
e

s
, 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

n
ts

 d
u

e
 f
ro

m
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

re
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

s
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
t 

th
e

 d
a

te
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

g
o

o
d

s
 o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

�
T

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
.

�

G
re

e
n

J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 e
s

ti
m

a
te

s
�

K
e

y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
in

c
lu

d
e

:

−
p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
ts

−
re

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

−
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s

−
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls

�
T

h
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 t
h

is
 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 

fo
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
. 
O

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 s

c
o

p
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

�
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
k
e

y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 

ju
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

.

�

A
m

b
e
r

O
th

e
r 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
�

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IP
F

A
 

C
o

d
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
.

�
O

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
 

p
o

lic
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
in

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 

h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
. 

�
A

ll 
o

th
e

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 w

e
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e

re
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
.

�

G
re

e
n

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

�
M

a
rg

in
a

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
o

lic
y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

�
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 b

u
t 
s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re

�
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 o
u
r 
co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
 o
f 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
p
o
lic
ie
s,
 i
n
 p
ar
ti
cu
la
r 
re
ve
n
u
e 
re
co
gn
it
io
n
 p
o
lic
ie
s,
  
an
d
 k
ey
 e
st
im
at
es
 a
n
d
 j
u
d
ge
m
en
ts
 m
ad
e 
an
d
 i
n
cl
u
d
ed
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 

fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 
 

Page 28



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
13

A
d
ju
st
ed
 m
is
st
at
em
en
ts

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

D
et
a
il

C
o
m
p
re
h
en
si
ve
 I
n
co
m
e 

a
n
d
 E
x
p
en
d
it
u
re
 

A
cc
o
u
n
t

£
'0
00

B
a
la
n
ce
 S
h
ee
t

£
'0
00

Im
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
o
ta
l 
n
et

ex
p
en
d
it
u
re

£
00
0

1
C
re
d
it
o
rs
 i
n
cr
ea
se
d
 b
y 
£
1.
07
6m
 t
o
 r
ec
o
g
n
is
e 
a
n
 a
m
o
u
n
t 

o
w
ed
 t
o
 C
a
lu
d
o
n
 C
a
st
le
 S
ch
o
o
l 
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 i
ts
 t
ra
n
sf
er
 t
o
 

a
ca
d
em
y 
st
a
tu
s 
in
 F
eb
ru
a
ry
 2
01
3.

1,
07

6
1,

07
6

1,
07

6

O
ve
ra
ll
 i
m
p
a
ct

£
1,
07
6

(i
n
cr
ea
se
)

£
1,
07
6

(d
ec
re
a
se
 i
n
 n
et
 

a
ss
et
s)

£
1,
07
6

(i
n
cr
ea
se
)

A
 n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
ad
ju
st
m
en
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e 
d
ra
ft
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 i
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
au
d
it
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 
W
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 r
ep
o
rt
 a
ll 
m
is
st
at
em
en
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
, 

w
h
et
h
er
 o
r 
n
o
t 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 a
d
ju
st
ed
 b
y 
m
an
ag
em
en
t.
 T
h
e 
ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
es
 t
h
e 
ad
ju
st
m
en
ts
 a
ri
si
n
g 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
au
d
it
 w
h
ic
h
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 p
ro
ce
ss
ed
 b
y 

m
an
ag
em
en
t.

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

a
d
ju

s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

A
ll 
ad
ju
st
ed
 m
is
st
at
em
en
ts
 a
re
 s
et
 o
u
t 
b
el
o
w
 a
lo
n
g 
w
it
h
 t
h
e 
im
p
ac
t 
o
n
 t
h
e 
ke
y 
st
at
em
en
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 f
in
an
ci
al
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
. 

Page 29



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
14

M
is
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
s 
&
 d
is
cl
o
su
re
 c
h
an
g
es

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
d
ju
st
m
en
t 
ty
p
e

V
a
lu
e

£
'0
00

A
cc
o
u
n
t 
b
a
la
n
ce

Im
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l 
st
a
te
m
en
ts

1
M

is
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
o

n
3,

69
1

C
re

d
it

o
rs

T
h

e 
h

o
u

si
n

g 
b

en
ef

it
 s

u
b

si
d

y 
gr

an
t 

d
eb

to
r 

h
ad

 b
ee

n
 i

n
co

rr
ec

tl
y 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 

w
it

h
in

 c
re

d
it

o
rs

.

2
D

is
cl

o
su

re
N

/
A

N
o

te
 3

.2
6 

M
em

b
er

s 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s
T

h
e 

to
ta

l 
m

em
b

er
s

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

w
as

 i
n

cr
ea

se
d

 f
ro

m
 £

95
5k

 t
o

 £
96

7k
 a

n
d

 
th

e 
d

is
cl

o
su

re
n

o
te

 a
m

en
d

ed
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
e 

co
rr

ec
t 

b
re

ak
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s 
an

d
 e

xp
en

se
s 

p
ai

d
.

3
D

is
cl

o
su

re
N

/
A

N
o

te
 3

.3
9 

A
u

d
it

 F
ee

s
A

m
en

d
ed

 t
h

e 
n

o
te

 t
o

 in
cl

u
d

e
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 o

f 
£

20
k 

an
d

 
d

is
cl

o
su

re
 o

f 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 r

eb
at

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

f 
£

24
k.

4
D

is
cl

o
su

re
N

/
A

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

P
o

lic
ie

s
A

s 
n

o
te

d
 a

b
o

ve
, t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g 
p

o
lic

ie
s 

w
er

e 
am

en
d

ed
 t

o
 i

n
cl

u
d

e 
a 

p
o

lic
y 

o
n

 o
ve

rh
ea

d
s.

5
M

is
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
o

n
N

/
A

20
11

/
12

 M
o

ve
m

en
t 

in
 

R
es

er
ve

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t
T

h
e 

to
ta

l 
re

se
rv

es
 o

f 
th

e 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 w
er

e 
in

co
rr

ec
tl

y 
to

ta
lle

d
in

 t
h

e 
ta

b
le

 
o

f 
u

n
u

sa
b

le
 r

es
er

ve
s 

an
d

 o
ve

ra
ll 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 2
01

1/
12

 c
o

m
p

ar
at

iv
es

.

T
h
e 
ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
 p
ro
vi
d
es
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
m
is
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
cl
o
su
re
 c
h
an
ge
s 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
au
d
it
 w
h
ic
h
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 m
ad
e
in
th
e 
fi
n
al
 s
et
 o
f 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 

Page 30



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
15

U
n
ad
ju
st
ed
 m
is
st
at
em
en
ts

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

T
h
er
e 
ar
e 
n
o
 u
n
ad
ju
st
ed
 m
is
st
at
em
en
ts
. 
 A
ll 
ad
ju
st
m
en
ts
 i
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
au
d
it
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 m
ad
e 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
fi
n
al
 s
et
 o
f 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
.

Page 31



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
16

In
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls

T
h

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

an
 a

u
d

it
 i

s 
to

 e
xp

re
ss

 a
n

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

O
u

r 
au

d
it

 i
n

cl
u

d
ed

 c
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 r

el
ev

an
t 

to
 t

h
e 

p
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 i
n

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 d

es
ig

n
au

d
it

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
th

at
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
in

 
th

e 
ci

rc
u

m
st

an
ce

s,
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

ex
p

re
ss

in
g 

an
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l. 

W
e 

h
av

e 
n

o
t 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
y 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

d
ef

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g 
to

 y
o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

.

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

Page 32



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
17

O
th
er
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 r
eq
u
ir
em
en
ts

Is
s

u
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

1
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 f
ra

u
d

�
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 in

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

2
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 l
a

w
s

 a
n

d
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

�
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
id

e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
la

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
.

3
.

W
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
�

A
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
le

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

�
S

p
e

c
if
ic

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

:

�
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
e

q
u

a
l 
p

a
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

.

�
c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 d

o
 n

o
t 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

 a
 p

ru
d

e
n

t 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l e
ff

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
t 
lia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
e

q
u

a
l 

p
a

y
 c

la
im

s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 v

ie
w

 i
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 w
it
h

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
re

lia
b

ili
ty

.

�
th

e
 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

rm
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

a
lu

d
o

n
 C

a
s
tl
e

 P
F

I 
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

n
 o

n
e

ro
u

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

�
th

a
t 
n

o
 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

t 
is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 o

n
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 d

e
b

to
rs

.

4
.

D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

�
S

e
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
.

5
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 r
e

la
te

d
 

p
a

rt
ie

s

�
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
.

6
.

G
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

�
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
a

n
y
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 a

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 

b
a

s
is

.

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

W
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
b
el
o
w
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
o
th
er
 m
at
te
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 b
y 
au
d
it
in
g 
st
an
d
ar
d
s 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
e 
to
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
.

Page 33



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 3
:
V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 34



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
19

V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n

T
h

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

20
10

 (
th

e 
C

o
d

e)
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 t

o
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
:

•
se

cu
re

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 i
ts

 u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
•

en
su

re
 p

ro
p

er
 s

te
w

ar
d

sh
ip

 a
n

d
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
•

re
vi

ew
 r

eg
u

la
rl

y 
th

e 
ad

eq
u

ac
y 

an
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

o
f 

th
es

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

.

W
e 

ar
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 g

iv
e 

o
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
tw

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
C

o
d

e.
 

•
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
ci
a
l 

re
si
li
en
ce
. 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

as
 r

o
b

u
st

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 t
o

 m
an

ag
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 a
 s

ta
b

le
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 t
h

at
 

en
ab

le
s 

it
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 o

p
er

at
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

b
le

 f
u

tu
re

.
•
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
 f
o
r 
ch
a
ll
en
g
in
g
 h
o
w
 i
t 
se
c
u
re
s 

ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

si
n

g 
it

s 
re

so
u

rc
es

 w
it

h
in

 t
ig

h
te

r 
b

u
d

ge
ts

, f
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
 b

y 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
co

st
 r

ed
u

ct
io

n
s 

an
d

 
b

y 
im

p
ro

vi
n

g 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y.

K
e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s

S
ec
u
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
re
si
li
en
ce

W
e 

h
av

e 
u

n
d

er
ta

ke
n

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

si
d

er
ed

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
ga

in
st

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
re

e 
ex

p
ec

te
d

 c
h

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

s 
o

f 
p

ro
p

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
s 

d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

:

•
F

in
an

ci
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

;
•

F
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

n
in

g;
 a

n
d

 
•

F
in

an
ci

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l

O
ve

ra
ll 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 c
o

n
cl

u
d

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

as
 s

tr
o

n
g 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
. I

ts
 o

ve
ra

ll 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 is
 c

h
al

le
n

gi
n

g,
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
20

13
/

14
 b

u
d

ge
t 

co
n

fi
rm

in
g 

a 
n

ee
d

 f
o

r 
n

ew
 s

av
in

gs
 o

f 
£

44
m

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 

co
ve

re
d

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n
 (

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

6)
. T

h
e 

re
ce

n
tl

y 
an

n
o

u
n

ce
d

 f
u

tu
re

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
re

so
u

rc
e 

al
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 f
ig

u
re

s 
in

d
ic

at
es

 a
 

w
o

rs
en

in
g 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

.  
O

ff
ic

er
s 

ar
e 

w
o

rk
in

g 
to

 a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e 

ch
al

le
n

ge
 p

o
se

d
 b

y 
th

es
e 

cu
ts

 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g.

 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 m
ea

n
 t

h
at

 i
t 

is
 w

el
l 

p
la

ce
d

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
is

 c
h

al
le

n
ge

, 
w

it
h

 a
 g

o
o

d
 r

ec
o

rd
 o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
b

u
d

ge
ta

ry
 c

o
n

tr
o

l a
n

d
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

sa
vi

n
gs

 –
al

th
o

u
gh

 t
h

er
e 

ar
e 

is
su

es
 s

p
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 i
n

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g 

P
eo

p
le

 d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 (
se

e 
b

el
o

w
).

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
au

d
it

o
rs

 (
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
) 

h
av

e 
co

m
m

en
te

d
 i

n
 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

ye
ar

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

lo
w

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
 r

es
er

ve
. W

h
ile

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l 

o
f 

th
e 

re
se

rv
e 

h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d
 b

y 
50

%
 in

 2
01

2/
13

, i
t 

re
m

ai
n

s 
lo

w
.

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 s

tr
o

n
g 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 f

in
an

ci
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 it
s 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 t

h
e 

d
is

p
u

te
 b

et
w

ee
n

 C
o

ve
n

tr
y 

C
it

y 
F

o
o

tb
al

l 
C

lu
b

 a
n

d
 A

re
n

a 
C

o
ve

n
tr

y 
L

im
it

ed
, w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
50

%
 o

w
n

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l. 
M

an
ag

in
g 

th
is

 is
su

e 
ra

is
ed

 s
o

m
e 

co
m

p
le

x 
is

su
es

 in
 a

re
as

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
co

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

, t
h

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 L

eg
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s'
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

in
g 

co
n

fi
d

en
ti

al
it

y,
 a

n
d

 t
h

es
e 

is
su

es
 w

er
e 

al
l 

h
an

d
le

d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

Page 35



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
20

C
h
a
ll
en
g
in
g
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s

W
e 

h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

as
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

se
d

 it
s 

re
so

u
rc

es
 t

o
 t

ak
e 

ac
co

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ti

gh
te

r 
co

n
st

ra
in

ts
 it

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 o

p
er

at
e 

w
it

h
in

. 

O
u

r 
o

ve
ra

ll 
co

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 is
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 r
es

p
o

n
d

in
g 

w
el

l 
to

 t
h

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 
o

f 
th

e 
L

o
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

F
in

an
ce

 S
et

tl
em

en
t,

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

sa
vi

n
gs

 a
n

d
 t

ar
ge

ti
n

g 
it

s 
re

so
u

rc
es

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 A
B

C
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

h
as

 e
n

ga
ge

d
 s

ta
ff

 
su

cc
es

sf
u

lly
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

es
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
h

ig
h

ly
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
an

d
 

d
el

iv
er

in
g 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s.
 O

f 
p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
n

o
te

 
is

 t
h

e 
fa

ct
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 n
o

t 
av

er
se

 t
o

 t
ak

in
g 

b
o

ld
 a

ct
io

n
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

o
ff

ic
e 

ra
ti

o
n

al
is

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

ct
.

O
n

e 
re

m
ai

n
in

g 
ar

ea
 o

f 
co

n
ce

rn
 i

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d

 r
es

u
lt

in
g 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

av
in

gs
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

fu
n

d
am

en
ta

l 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

vi
ew

 i
n

 t
h

e 
C

h
ild

re
n

, 
L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d

 Y
o

u
n

g 
P

eo
p

le
 D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
. T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
, w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 i

n
te

n
d

ed
 t

o
 r

es
p

o
n

d
 

to
 t

h
e 

co
n

ti
n

u
in

g 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o

 l
o

o
ke

d
-a

ft
er

 c
h

ild
re

n
 (

L
A

C
),

 s
et

 
am

b
it

io
u

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
re

d
u

ci
n

g 
th

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

L
A

C
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 e

ar
ly

 
in

te
rv

en
ti

o
n

, a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g 

co
st

s 
th

ro
u

gh
 in

cr
ea

si
n

g 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 o

w
n

 f
o

st
er

in
g 

ca
p

ac
it

y.
 T

h
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

er
e 

in
te

n
d

ed
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

av
in

gs
 f

ro
m

 
20

13
/

14
 o

n
w

ar
d

s.
 

T
h

es
e 

sa
vi

n
gs

 t
ar

ge
ts

 h
av

e,
 h

o
w

ev
er

, h
ad

 t
o

 b
e 

re
ca

st
 b

ec
au

se
 t

h
er

e 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 d

el
ay

s 
in

 i
m

p
ro

vi
n

g 
ea

rl
y 

in
te

rv
en

ti
o

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
n

d
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
in

 b
u

ild
in

g 
fo

st
er

in
g 

ca
p

ac
it

y.
 T

h
e 

co
n

te
xt

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
h

as
 a

ls
o

 b
ee

n
 a

ff
ec

te
d

 b
y 

a 
re

ce
n

t 
se

ri
o

u
s 

ca
se

 
re

vi
ew

 i
n

vo
lv

in
g 

th
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

. W
h

ile
 s

o
m

e 
go

o
d

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 m
ad

e,
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

n
ee

d
s 

to
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 p
re

ss
u

re
 a

n
d

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

sa
vi

n
gs

 b
u

ilt
 i

n
to

 it
s 

o
ve

ra
ll 

p
la

n
s 

ar
e 

ac
h

ie
va

b
le

.

O
v
e
ra

ll
 V

F
M

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n

O
n

 t
h

e 
b

as
is

 o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

, a
n

d
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

p
u

b
lis

h
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

, w
e 

ar
e 

sa
ti

sf
ie

d
 t

h
at

 i
n

 a
ll 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

re
sp

ec
ts

 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
 s

ec
u

re
 e

co
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 i

ts
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

in
g 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3.

Page 36



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
21

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
R

is
k

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

s
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 r

e
s

id
u

a
l 
ri

s
k

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l P
o

s
it
io

n
 –

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

fa
c
e

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 d
u

e
 t
o

 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 in

 g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g

.

W
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t-

s
e

tt
in

g
 

re
p

o
rt

s
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

o
u

r 
re

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 

a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

B
C

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 k

e
y
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 m
e

d
iu

m
-

te
rm

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
. 

W
e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 i
s
 t
a

k
in

g
 
s
e

n
s
ib

le
 a

c
ti
o

n
  
to

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
 i
ts

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l f
u

tu
re

 a
n

d
  
th

e
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
, 
b

u
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d

  
u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
ti
e

s
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 v

it
a

l 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 :

-
M

a
in

ta
in

 t
ig

h
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l c
o

n
tr

o
l

-
K

e
e

p
 t
h

e
 M

T
F

P
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 a
n

d
  
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

s

-
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t
h

e
 A

B
C

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

R
e

fo
rm

s
 –

w
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
  
a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

s
e

 r
e

fo
rm

s
 t
a

k
in

g
 

e
ff

e
c
t 
in

  
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

w
o

rk
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
.

W
e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 f
a

c
to

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
  
in

to
 

it
s
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
la

n
n

in
g

 .

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 –
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 o
f 
£

6
 m

ill
io

n
 a

t 
3

1
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

  
(2

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 
o

f 
b

u
d

g
e

t)
 w

a
s
 o

n
e

 

o
f 
th

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

W
e
s
t 
M

id
la

n
d

s
 m

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
d

 i
t 

in
 t
h

e
 l
ig

h
t 
o

f 
th

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

re
s
e

rv
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

ld
s
 a

n
d

 

it
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
s
tr

o
n

g
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

b
u

d
g

e
ta

ry
 c

o
n

tr
o

l.
 W

e
 

h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
o

 £
9

m
 a

t 

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

.

W
e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t,

 w
h

ile
 a

 h
ig

h
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

d
e

s
ir

a
b

le
  
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
  
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

u
ff

e
r 

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
u

n
fo

re
s
e

e
n

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
, 
th

e
 

lo
w

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
th

e
re

s
e

rv
e

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
t 
a

  
m

a
jo

r 
ri

s
k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e
.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 in

 t
h

e
  
C

h
ild

re
n

, 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 –

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

, 
m

a
in

ly
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 

a
n

d
 f
o

s
te

r 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ta
ry

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
ls

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 s

o
u

g
h

t 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e

d
-a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
a

rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
  
a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 in

te
rn

a
l 
fo

s
te

r 
c
a

re
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
.

O
v
e

ra
ll,

 w
e

a
re

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 i
n

  
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 r

is
k
s
  
a

ro
u

n
d

 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
  
a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l s

e
rv

ic
e

 

re
v
ie

w
, 

w
it
h

 d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n
g

  
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

  

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 in

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
o

s
te

r 
c
a

re
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
, 
w

it
h

 a
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
  
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
  

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

th
e

re
fo

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

  
m

a
in

ta
in

 i
ts

 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
re

a
lis

ti
c
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 f

a
c
to

re
d

 in
to

 

it
s
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
la

n
s
. 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
V

fM
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

w
e 

p
er

fo
rm

ed
 a

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
ag

ai
n

st
 V

fM
 r

is
k 

in
d

ic
at

o
rs

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

. O
u

r 
in

it
ia

l 
ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ri
sk

s 
to

 o
u

r 
V

fM
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 u

p
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
m

o
re

 d
et

ai
le

d
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t:

Page 37



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 4
:
F
ee
s,
 n
o
n
 a
u
d
it
 s
er
v
ic
es
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
ep
en
d
en
ce

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 38



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
23

F
e

e
s

P
e

r 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n £

A
c

tu
a

l 
fe

e
s

 

£

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
u

d
it

2
2

9
,8

1
0

2
2

9
,8

1
0

G
ra

n
t 
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 –

In
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 

F
e

e

2
8

,9
0

0
2

8
,9

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

s
2

5
8

,7
1

0
2

5
8

,7
1

0

F
ee
s,
 n
o
n
 a
u
d
it
 s
er
v
ic
es
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
ep
en
d
en
ce

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 b
el

o
w

 o
u

r 
fi

n
al

 f
ee

s 
ch

ar
ge

d
 f

o
r 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

n
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 e
th

ic
s

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 t

h
er

e 
ar

e 
n

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

fa
ct

s 
o

r 
m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 i
m

p
ac

t 
o

n
 o

u
r 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

s 
au

d
it

o
rs

 
th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 o
r 

w
is

h
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

. W
e 

h
av

e 
co

m
p

lie
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g 

P
ra

ct
ic

es
 

B
o

ar
d

's
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

an
d

 t
h

er
ef

o
re

 w
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

an
d

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 e

xp
re

ss
 a

n
 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e 

o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 w

e 
h

av
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g 

P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
's

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s.

F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

e
e

s
 £

D
u

e
 d

ili
g

e
n

c
e

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
G

ro
w

th
 F

u
n

d
1

7
,6

1
4

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

o
w

 E
m

is
s
io

n
 V

e
h

ic
le

 D
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
to

rs
 g

ra
n

t 
c
la

im
 w

h
ic

h
 f

a
lls

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts

2
,8

0
0

F
e
e
s
, 
n
o
n
 a

u
d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

W
o

rk
 o

n
 g

ra
n

t 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 i
s 

o
n

go
in

g.
 W

e 
w

ill
 r

ep
o

rt
 a

n
y 

va
ri

an
ce

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

ab
o

ve
 f

ee
 t

o
 y

o
u

 o
n

ce
 w

o
rk

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

.

Page 39



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 5
:
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
au
d
it
 m
at
te
rs

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 40



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
25

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
au
d
it
 m
at
te
rs
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
g
ed
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce

O
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

P
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

F
in

d
in

g
s

R
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

th
o

s
e

 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

�

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 t
im

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
F

o
rm

, 
ti
m

in
g

 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
o

n
te

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s

�

V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

  
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

's
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
g

h
t

�

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

�
�

A
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
e

th
ic

a
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

, 
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
 b

e
 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n
c
e

. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 b

y
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f
ir

m
s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

  
fe

e
s
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

�
�

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
�

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
u

s
p

ic
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 in

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

�

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

�

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r'
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

�

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s

�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
�

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
n

 A
u

d
it
in

g
 (

IS
A

) 
2

6
0

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
IS

A
s
, 
p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
w

h
ile

 t
h

is
 A

u
d

it
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 

w
it
h

 a
n

 e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
o

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
.

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

(w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
).

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
, 
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

in
 E

n
g

la
n

d
. 
A

s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

ro
a

d
 r

e
m

it
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
. 

O
u

r 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 s
e

t 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
'th

e
 

C
o

d
e

')
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

o
rk

. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 o
u

r 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

. 

It
 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 

th
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

f 
it
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.
  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 f
u

lf
ill

in
g

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
.

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 m

a
tt
e
rs

Page 41



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
26

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 42



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
27

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
: 
A
ct
io
n
 p
la
n

R
e

c

N
o

.
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

d
a

te
 &

 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

1
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
 it

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 b

y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 :

-
M

a
in

ta
in

 t
ig

h
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l c
o

n
tr

o
l

-
K

e
e

p
 t
h

e
 M

T
F

P
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 a
n

d
  
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
a

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

s

-
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t
h

e
 A

B
C

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

H
ig

h
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
ti
g

h
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l c
o

n
tr

o
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

 k
e

y
 

fo
c
u

s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

ly
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
T

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 r

ig
o

ro
u

s
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

 s
o

u
n

d
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
m

o
re

 t
im

e
ly

 b
u

d
g

e
ta

ry
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o

rt
h

c
o

m
in

g
 n

e
w

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 r

o
lli

n
g

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t
e

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

re
c
a

s
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

s
. 
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 k
e

p
t 
a

b
re

a
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
s
 t
h

e
 f
o

rt
h

c
o

m
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
S

e
tt

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
.

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 A

b
c

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 

fu
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 d

a
y
 t
o

 d
a

y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 
A

n
y
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-d
e

liv
e

ry
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 d
e

e
m

e
d

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

ft
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
le

x
e

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 43



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
28

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
: 
A
ct
io
n
 p
la
n

R
e

c

N
o

.
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

d
a

te
 &

 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

2
T

h
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

  
a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 a

d
e

q
u

a
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
ig

h
t 
o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
is

k
s
 f
a

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

  

H
ig

h
T

h
e

 a
d

e
q

u
a

c
y
 o

f 
a

ll 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
t 
k
e

y
 p

o
in

ts
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l f
in

a
n

c
ia

l c
y
c
le

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 k

e
y
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 

ri
s
k
, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
p

a
rt

-l
o

c
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
a

c
to

re
d

 in
to

 a
n

y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
re

s
e

rv
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

3
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
  

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

L
Y

P
 f

u
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

H
ig

h
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ta
ry

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
ro

u
ti
n

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 

a
b

c
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 (
p

e
r 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

) 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

L
Y

P
F

S
R

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
 k

e
y
 a

re
a

 o
f 

fo
c
u

s
. 
T

h
is

 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

4
T

h
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
 t

h
e

 M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 r

e
a

lis
ti
c
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

a
ri

s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

L
Y

P
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
.

H
ig

h
T

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
B

o
a

rd
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

b
c

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
e

t 
s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 b
y
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
W

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
a

l s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 p

ro
v
e

s
 u

n
d

e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 t
h

e
n

 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 in

 f
u

tu
re

 B
u

d
g

e
t 
S

e
tt

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 

v
e

ry
 d

e
m

a
n

d
in

g
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 C

L
Y

P
re

v
ie

w
 h

a
v
e

 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

a
t 
a

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

(S
c
ru

ti
n

y
) 

le
v
e

l.
 A

n
y
 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 d

ra
w

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 B
u

d
g

e
t 
S

e
tt

in
g

.

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 44



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
29

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
: 
A
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n

W
e
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

 w
e
 w

il
l 
p

ro
v

id
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 w

it
h

 a
n

 u
n

m
o

d
if

ie
d

 a
u

d
it

 r
e
p

o
rt

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 C

O
V

E
N

T
R

Y
 C

IT
Y

 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
st

a
te

m
e
n

ts

W
e 
h
av
e 
au
d
it
ed
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 o
f 
C
o
ve
n
tr
y 
C
it
y 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
fo
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 e
n
d
ed
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 
u
n
d
er
 

th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 A
ct
 1
99
8.
 T
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 c
o
m
p
ri
se
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 G
ro
u
p
 M
o
ve
m
en
t 
in
 

R
es
er
ve
s 
S
ta
te
m
en
t,
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 G
ro
u
p
 C
o
m
p
re
h
en
si
ve
 I
n
co
m
e 
an
d
 E
xp
en
d
it
u
re
 S
ta
te
m
en
t,
 t
h
e 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 G
ro
u
p
 B
al
an
ce
 S
h
ee
t,
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 G
ro
u
p
 C
as
h
 F
lo
w
 S
ta
te
m
en
t 
an
d
 C
o
lle
ct
io
n
 F
u
n
d
 

an
d
 t
h
e 
re
la
te
d
 n
o
te
s.
 T
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 r
ep
o
rt
in
g 
fr
am
ew
o
rk
 t
h
at
 h
as
 b
ee
n
 a
p
p
lie
d
 i
n
 t
h
ei
r 
p
re
p
ar
at
io
n
 i
s 

ap
p
lic
ab
le
 l
aw
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
C
IP
F
A
/
L
A
S
A
A
C
 C
o
d
e 
o
f 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 
o
n
 L
o
ca
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g 
in
 t
h
e 
U
n
it
ed
 

K
in
gd
o
m
 2
01
2/
13
.

T
h
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 is
 m
ad
e 
so
le
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e 
m
em
b
er
s 
o
f 
C
o
ve
n
tr
y 
C
it
y 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
in
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 P
ar
t 
II
 o
f 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 A
ct
 1
99
8 
an
d
 f
o
r 
n
o
 o
th
er
 p
u
rp
o
se
, a
s 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 p
ar
ag
ra
p
h
 4
8 
o
f 
th
e 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 
o
f 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 o
f 
A
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
ed
 B
o
d
ie
s 
p
u
b
lis
h
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 in
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0.
 T
o
 t
h
e 

fu
lle
st
 e
xt
en
t 
p
er
m
it
te
d
 b
y 
la
w
, w
e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
ac
ce
p
t 
o
r 
as
su
m
e 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 a
n
yo
n
e 
o
th
er
 t
h
an
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

an
d
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
's
 M
em
b
er
s 
as
 a
 b
o
d
y,
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 w
o
rk
, f
o
r 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
, o
r 
fo
r 
th
e 
o
p
in
io
n
s 
w
e 
h
av
e 

fo
rm
ed
.

R
e
sp

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 L
e
g

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r

A
s 
ex
p
la
in
ed
 m
o
re
 f
u
lly
 in
 t
h
e 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 
o
f 
th
e 
D
ir
ec
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 L
eg
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
, 
th
e 

D
ir
ec
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 L
eg
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e 
p
re
p
ar
at
io
n
 o
f 
th
e 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 
o
f 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
, 

w
h
ic
h
 i
n
cl
u
d
es
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
, i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
er
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
 a
s 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e 

C
IP
F
A
/
L
A
S
A
A
C
 C
o
d
e 
o
f 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 
o
n
 L
o
ca
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g 
in
 t
h
e 
U
n
it
ed
 K
in
gd
o
m
, a
n
d
 f
o
r 
b
ei
n
g 

sa
ti
sf
ie
d
 t
h
at
 t
h
ey
 g
iv
e 
a 
tr
u
e 
an
d
 f
ai
r 
vi
ew
. O
u
r 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 i
s 
to
 a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 e
xp
re
ss
 a
n
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 

fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 in
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
lic
ab
le
 l
aw
 a
n
d
 I
n
te
rn
at
io
n
al
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
o
n
 A
u
d
it
in
g 
(U
K
 a
n
d
 

Ir
el
an
d
).
 T
h
o
se
 s
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
re
q
u
ir
e 
u
s 
to
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
in
g 
P
ra
ct
ic
es
 B
o
ar
d
’s
 E
th
ic
al
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
fo
r 

A
u
d
it
o
rs
.

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
st

a
te

m
e
n

ts

A
n
 a
u
d
it
 in
vo
lv
es
 o
b
ta
in
in
g 
ev
id
en
ce
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e 
am
o
u
n
ts
 a
n
d
 d
is
cl
o
su
re
s 
in
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

to
 g
iv
e 
re
as
o
n
ab
le
 a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
 t
h
at
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 a
re
 f
re
e 
fr
o
m
 m
at
er
ia
l m
is
st
at
em
en
t,
 w
h
et
h
er
 

ca
u
se
d
 b
y 
fr
au
d
 o
r 
er
ro
r.
 T
h
is
 in
cl
u
d
es
 a
n
 a
ss
es
sm
en
t 
o
f:
 w
h
et
h
er
 t
h
e 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
p
o
lic
ie
s 
ar
e 
ap
p
ro
p
ri
at
e 
to
 

th
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 G
ro
u
p
’s
 c
ir
cu
m
st
an
ce
s 
an
d
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 c
o
n
si
st
en
tl
y 
ap
p
lie
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
eq
u
at
el
y 
d
is
cl
o
se
d
; t
h
e 

re
as
o
n
ab
le
n
es
s 
o
f 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
es
ti
m
at
es
 m
ad
e 
b
y 
th
e 
D
ir
ec
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 L
eg
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s;
 a
n
d
 

th
e 
o
ve
ra
ll 
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, w
e 
re
ad
 a
ll 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-f
in
an
ci
al
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e 
ex
p
la
n
at
o
ry
 f
o
re
w
o
rd
 t
o
 id
en
ti
fy
 m
at
er
ia
l i
n
co
n
si
st
en
ci
es
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
au
d
it
ed
 f
in
an
ci
al
 

st
at
em
en
ts
. I
f 
w
e 
b
ec
o
m
e 
aw
ar
e 
o
f 
an
y 
ap
p
ar
en
t 
m
at
er
ia
l m
is
st
at
em
en
ts
 o
r 
in
co
n
si
st
en
ci
es
 w
e 
co
n
si
d
er
 t
h
e 

im
p
lic
at
io
n
s 
fo
r 
o
u
r 
re
p
o
rt
.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
st

a
te

m
e
n

ts

In
 o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
:

•
gi
ve
 a
 t
ru
e 
an
d
 f
ai
r 
vi
ew
 o
f 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
ve
n
tr
y 
C
it
y 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
as
 a
t 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 
an
d
 o
f 

it
s 
ex
p
en
d
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 t
h
en
 e
n
d
ed
;

•
gi
ve
 a
 t
ru
e 
an
d
 f
ai
r 
vi
ew
 o
f 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
G
ro
u
p
 a
s 
at
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 
an
d
 o
f 
it
s 

ex
p
en
d
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 t
h
en
 e
n
d
ed
; a
n
d

•
h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 p
ro
p
er
ly
 p
re
p
ar
ed
 in
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
IP
F
A
/
L
A
S
A
A
C
 C
o
d
e 
o
f 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 
o
n
 L
o
ca
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g 
in
 t
h
e 
U
n
it
ed
 K
in
gd
o
m
 2
01
2/
13
.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
tt

e
rs

In
 o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
, 
th
e 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 g
iv
en
 i
n
 t
h
e 
ex
p
la
n
at
o
ry
 f
o
re
w
o
rd
  
fo
r 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 y
ea
r 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e 

fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 a
re
 p
re
p
ar
ed
 is
 c
o
n
si
st
en
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
.

M
a
tt

e
rs

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 e

x
c
e
p

ti
o

n

W
e 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 y
o
u
 if
:

•
in
 o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 t
h
e 
an
n
u
al
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 s
ta
te
m
en
t 
d
o
es
 n
o
t 
re
fl
ec
t 
co
m
p
lia
n
ce
 w
it
h
 ‘D
el
iv
er
in
g 
G
o
o
d
 

G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 in
 L
o
ca
l 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t:
 a
 F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
’ p
u
b
lis
h
ed
 b
y 
C
IP
F
A
/
S
O
L
A
C
E
 in
 J
u
n
e 
20
07
;

•
w
e 
is
su
e 
a 
re
p
o
rt
 in
 t
h
e 
p
u
b
lic
 i
n
te
re
st
 u
n
d
er
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 8
 o
f 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 A
ct
 1
99
8;

•
w
e 
d
es
ig
n
at
e 
u
n
d
er
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 1
1 
o
f 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 A
ct
 1
99
8 
an
y 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 a
s 
o
n
e 
th
at
 

re
q
u
ir
es
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 c
o
n
si
d
er
 i
t 
at
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 m
ee
ti
n
g 
an
d
 t
o
 d
ec
id
e 
w
h
at
 a
ct
io
n
 t
o
 t
ak
e 
in
 r
es
p
o
n
se
; o
r

•
w
e 
ex
er
ci
se
 a
n
y 
o
th
er
 s
p
ec
ia
l 
p
o
w
er
s 
o
f 
th
e 
au
d
it
o
r 
u
n
d
er
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 A
ct
 1
99
8.

W
e 
h
av
e 
n
o
th
in
g 
to
 r
ep
o
rt
 in
 t
h
es
e 
re
sp
ec
ts
.

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 45



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
30

C
o

n
c
lu

si
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

se
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
ss

 i
n

 

th
e
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
e
s

R
e
sp

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r

T
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
u
tt
in
g 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 t
o
 s
ec
u
re
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
, t
o
 e
n
su
re
 p
ro
p
er
 s
te
w
ar
d
sh
ip
 a
n
d
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
, 
an
d
 t
o
 r
ev
ie
w
 r
eg
u
la
rl
y 

th
e 
ad
eq
u
ac
y 
an
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
o
f 
th
es
e 
ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
.

W
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 u
n
d
er
 S
ec
ti
o
n
 5
 o
f 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 A
ct
 1
99
8 
to
 s
at
is
fy
 o
u
rs
el
ve
s 
th
at
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

h
as
 m
ad
e 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 it
s 
u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
. T
h
e 

C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 
is
su
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 r
eq
u
ir
es
 u
s 
to
 r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 y
o
u
 o
u
r 
co
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 r
el
at
in
g 

to
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
, h
av
in
g 
re
ga
rd
 t
o
 r
el
ev
an
t 
cr
it
er
ia
 s
p
ec
if
ie
d
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
.

W
e 
re
p
o
rt
 if
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
m
at
te
rs
 h
av
e 
co
m
e 
to
 o
u
r 
at
te
n
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 p
re
ve
n
t 
u
s 
fr
o
m
 c
o
n
cl
u
d
in
g 
th
at
 t
h
e 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 h
as
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 it
s 
u
se
 

o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
. W
e 
ar
e 
n
o
t 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 c
o
n
si
d
er
, n
o
r 
h
av
e 
w
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
, w
h
et
h
er
 a
ll 
as
p
ec
ts
 o
f 
th
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
 a
re
 o
p
er
at
in
g 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

se
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
ss

 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s

W
e 
h
av
e 
u
n
d
er
ta
ke
n
 o
u
r 
au
d
it
 in
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e,
 h
av
in
g 
re
ga
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e 
gu
id
an
ce
 

o
n
 t
h
e 
sp
ec
if
ie
d
 c
ri
te
ri
a,
 p
u
b
lis
h
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 in
 N
o
ve
m
b
er
 2
01
2,
 a
s 
to
 w
h
et
h
er
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

h
as
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r:

•
se
cu
ri
n
g 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 r
es
ili
en
ce
; 
an
d

•
ch
al
le
n
gi
n
g 
h
o
w
 i
t 
se
cu
re
s 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s.

T
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 h
as
 d
et
er
m
in
ed
 t
h
es
e 
tw
o
 c
ri
te
ri
a 
as
 t
h
o
se
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 f
o
r 
u
s 
to
 c
o
n
si
d
er
 u
n
d
er
 t
h
e 

C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 
in
 s
at
is
fy
in
g 
o
u
rs
el
ve
s 
w
h
et
h
er
 t
h
e 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 

se
cu
ri
n
g 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
 f
o
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 e
n
d
ed
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3.

W
e 
p
la
n
n
ed
 o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 in
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e.
 B
as
ed
 o
n
 o
u
r 
ri
sk
 a
ss
es
sm
en
t,
 w
e 

u
n
d
er
to
o
k 
su
ch
 w
o
rk
 a
s 
w
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 t
o
 f
o
rm
 a
 v
ie
w
 o
n
 w
h
et
h
er
, i
n
 a
ll 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
re
sp
ec
ts
, t
h
e 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 h
ad
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 t
o
 s
ec
u
re
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
es
.

C
o

n
c
lu

si
o

n

O
n
 t
h
e 
b
as
is
 o
f 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
, h
av
in
g 
re
ga
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e 
gu
id
an
ce
 o
n
 t
h
e 
sp
ec
if
ie
d
 c
ri
te
ri
a 
p
u
b
lis
h
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 in
 N
o
ve
m
b
er
 2
01
2,
 w
e 
ar
e 
sa
ti
sf
ie
d
 t
h
at
, i
n
 a
ll 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
re
sp
ec
ts
, C
o
ve
n
tr
y 
C
it
y 
C
o
u
n
ci
l
p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 t
o
 s
ec
u
re
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
 f
o
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 

en
d
ed
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3.

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

W
e 
ce
rt
if
y 
th
at
 w
e 
h
av
e 
co
m
p
le
te
d
 t
h
e 
au
d
it
 o
f 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 o
f 
C
o
ve
n
tr
y 
C
it
y 
C
o
u
n
ci
l i
n
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
 o
f 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 A
ct
 1
99
8 
an
d
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 
is
su
ed
 

b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
.

Jo
h
n
 G
re
go
ry

D
ir
ec
to
r

fo
r 
an
d
 o
n
 b
eh
al
f 
o
f 
G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
, A
p
p
o
in
te
d
 A
u
d
it
o
r

C
o
lm
o
re
 P
la
za

20
 C
o
lm
o
re
 C
ir
cu
s

B
ir
m
in
gh
am

B
4 
6A
T

[D
at
e]

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 46



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
31

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 C
: 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
au
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 

cy
cl
e

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 

ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
 

p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s

C
o
st
o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 -

o
p
er
at
in
g 
ex
p
en
se
s

O
p
er
at
in
g 

ex
p
en
se
s

O
th
er

O
p
er
at
in
g
ex
p
en
se
s 

u
n
d
er
st
at
ed

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
o
st
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
–

em
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

O
th
er

R
em
u
n
er
at
io
n
ex
p
en
se
s 
n
o
t 

co
rr
ec
t

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
o
st
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
–

H
o
u
si
n
g 
&
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 

ta
x 
b
en
ef
it

W
el
fa
re
 

ex
p
en
d
it
u
re

O
th
er

W
el
fa
re
 b
en
ef
it
s
im
p
ro
p
er
ly
 

co
m
p
u
te
d

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
o
st
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 –

o
th
er
 r
ev
en
u
es
 (
fe
es

&
 c
h
ar
ge
s)

O
th
er
 r
ev
en
u
es

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

(G
ai
n
s)
/
 L
o
ss
 o
n
 

d
is
p
o
sa
l 
o
f
n
o
n
 

cu
rr
en
t 
as
se
ts

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 

an
d
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
re
ce
p
ts
an
d
 L
ev
ie
s

C
o
u
n
ci
l
T
ax

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
ay
m
en
ts
 t
o
 H
o
u
si
n
g 

C
ap
it
al
 R
ec
ei
p
ts
 P
o
o
l

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 

an
d
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
p

re
se

n
t 

o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
gs

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

m
at

te
rs

 a
n

d
 r

is
ks

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g 
st

ag
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 a
ro

se
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

co
u

rs
e 

o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

W
e 

h
av

e 
n

o
t 

h
ad

 t
o

 c
h

an
ge

 o
u

r 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 a
s 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 y

o
u

 o
n

 1
0 

A
p

ri
l 2

01
3

Page 47



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
32

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 

cy
cl
e

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 

ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
 

p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s

In
te
re
st
 p
ay
ab
le
 a
n
d
 

si
m
ila
r 
ch
ar
ge
s

B
o
rr
o
w
in
gs

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
en
si
o
n
In
te
re
st
 c
o
st

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
te
re
st
an
d
 i
n
ve
st
m
en
t 

in
co
m
e

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

R
et
u
rn
 o
n
 P
en
si
o
n
 

as
se
ts

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

D
iv
id
en
d
 i
n
co
m
e 
fr
o
m
 

Jo
in
t 
V
en
tu
re

R
ev
en
u
e

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

Im
p
ai
rm
en
t 
o
f 

in
ve
st
m
en
ts

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
co
m
e 
fr
o
m
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 

ta
x

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
T
ax

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

N
N
D
R
 D
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

N
N
D
R

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
F
I 
re
ve
n
u
e 
su
p
p
o
rt

gr
an
t 
an
d
 o
th
er
 

G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
gr
an
ts

G
ra
n
t 
In
co
m
e

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
ap
it
al
 g
ra
n
ts
 &
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g 
th
o
se

re
ce
iv
ed
 in
 a
d
va
n
ce
)

P
ro
p
er
ty
,
P
la
n
t 

&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

Page 48



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
33

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 

cy
cl
e

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 

ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
 

p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s

In
ve
st
m
en
t 
p
ro
p
er
ti
es
: 

in
co
m
e,
 e
xp
en
d
it
u
re
,

va
lu
at
io
n
 c
h
an
ge
s 
&
 

ga
in
 o
n
 d
is
p
o
sa
l

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 

&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t 

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

(S
u
rp
lu
s)
/
 D
ef
ic
it
 o
n
 

re
va
lu
at
io
n
 o
f 
n
o
n
 

cu
rr
en
t 
as
se
ts

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 

&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

A
ct
u
ar
ia
l(
ga
in
s)
/
 

L
o
ss
es
 o
n
 p
en
si
o
n
 f
u
n
d
 

as
se
ts
 &
 li
ab
ili
ti
es

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

O
th
er
 c
o
m
p
re
h
en
si
ve
 

(g
ai
n
s)
/
lo
ss
es

R
ev
en
u
e/
 

o
p
er
at
in
g 

ex
p
en
se
s

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
ro
p
er
ty
,
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t

&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

O
th
er

P
P
E
ac
ti
vi
ty
 n
o
t 
va
lid

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
ro
p
er
ty
,
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t

&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

O
th
er

R
ev
al
u
at
io
n
m
ea
su
re
m
en
ts
 

n
o
t 
co
rr
ec
t

N
o

N
o
n
e

H
er
it
ag
e
as
se
ts
 &
 

In
ve
st
m
en
t 
p
ro
p
er
ty

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 

&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
ta
n
gi
b
le
 a
ss
et
s

In
ta
n
gi
b
le
 a
ss
et
s

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
ve
st
m
en
ts
(l
o
n
g 
&
 

sh
o
rt
 t
er
m
)

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

D
eb
to
rs
(l
o
n
g 
&
 s
h
o
rt
 

te
rm
)

R
ev
en
u
e

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

Page 49



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e
34

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 

cy
cl
e

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 

ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
 

p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s

A
ss
et
s 
h
el
d
 f
o
r 
sa
le

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 

&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
ve
n
to
ri
es

In
ve
n
to
ri
es

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
as
h
 &
 c
as
h
 

eq
u
iv
al
en
ts

B
an
k 
&
 c
as
h

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g 
(l
o
n
g
&
 

sh
o
rt
 t
er
m
)

D
eb
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
re
d
it
o
rs
(l
o
n
g 
&
 S
h
o
rt
 

te
rm
)

O
p
er
at
in
g 

E
xp
en
se
s

O
th
er

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 u
n
d
er
st
at
ed
 o
r 

n
o
t 
re
co
rd
ed
 in
 t
h
e 
co
rr
ec
t

p
er
io
d

N
o

Y
es

P
ro
vi
si
o
n
s
(l
o
n
g 
&
 

sh
o
rt
 t
er
m
)

P
ro
vi
si
o
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
en
si
o
n
 l
ia
b
ili
ty

E
m
p
lo
ye
e

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

R
es
er
ve
s

E
q
u
it
y

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

B
ir
m
in
gh
am
 A
ir
p
o
rt
 

sh
ar
es

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
o
ve
n
tr
y 
&
 S
o
lih
u
ll 

W
as
te
 d
is
p
o
sa
l 

C
o
m
p
an
y

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

N
ew
 H
o
m
es
 f
o
r 
O
ld
 

P
F
I

D
eb
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

S
tr
ee
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g 
P
F
I

D
eb
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
al
u
d
o
n
 C
as
tl
e 
P
F
I

D
eb
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

Page 50



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



abc Public report
Audit & Procurement Committee 

 

 
 

 

 

Audit Committee 23rd September 2013 
 
 
Name of Cabinet Member:  
Cabinet Member (Strategic Finance and Resources) – Councillor Gannon 
 
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Executive Director Resources 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
All 
 
 
Title: 
Audited 2012/13 Statement of Accounts  
 
Is this a key decision? 
No 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
The purpose of this report is to gain Audit & Procurement Committee's approval for the audited 
2012/13 Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement, incorporating any agreed 
changes to the draft accounts considered by Audit & Procurement Committee in July. The Audit 
& Procurement Committee is approving these accounts on the Council's behalf. 
 
Recommendations: 
Audit & Procurement Committee is recommended to approve the final 2012/13 Statement of 
Accounts, the Letter of Representation to our auditors at Appendix 1 and the Annual Governance 
Statement.  
 
List of Appendices included: 
The final Statement of Accounts incorporating the agreed changes will be available prior to or at 
the meeting. 
 
This report is presented alongside the External Auditor's Audit Findings Report which details the 
key changes to the draft Statement of Accounts considered by the Audit and Procurement 
Committee in July. The changes have been agreed between Grant Thornton and the Executive 
Director of Resources.   
 
Other useful background papers: 
None. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 53



 

 2 

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
No 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?  
No 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
No. The Audit & Procurement Committee is approving the City Council's Statement of Accounts 
and Annual Governance Statement on the Council’s behalf.  
 
 
 

Page 54



 

 3 

Report title: 
Audited 2012/13 Statement of Accounts  
 
 
1. Context (or background) 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 changed the process for approving local 
government accounts. Rather than getting the unaudited Statement of Accounts and 
Annual Governance Statement approved by 30th June each year, the Council now needs to 
have the audited statements approved by 30th September. Alongside this change, on 13th 
September 2011 Council approved the delegation of responsibility for approving the 
statements to the Audit Committee (now the Audit & Procurement Committee), which has 
become the key body in respect of understanding, analysing and discussing the content of 
these statements.   
 
The Audit & Procurement Committee reviewed and commented upon the draft 2012/13 
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement at its meeting on 8th July 2013. 
This report now seeks approval of the final audited statements.  
 
 
 

2. Options considered and recommended proposal 
 
2.1 This report is presented alongside the Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report. This report 

details all the significant changes to the draft accounts and Annual Governance Statement 
considered by the Audit & Procurement Committee in July. These changes have been 
agreed between the Grant Thornton and the Executive Director of Resources.  The revised 
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement will be made available prior to 
or at the meeting and the key changes to them are explained clearly within the Grant 
Thornton Audit Findings report elsewhere on today’s agenda. 

 
 
Report author(s):  
 
Name and job title: Paul Jennings, Finance Manager (Corporate Finance) 
 
Directorate: Resources Directorate 
 
Tel and email contact: 02476833753 paul.jennings@coventry.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 

 4 

Appendix 1: Proposed Text of Letter of Representation 
 
 
 
Dear Sirs 

Coventry City Council 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of 
Coventry City Council for the year ended 31 March 2013 for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting. 
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 
Financial Statements 
i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 

accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain ("the Code") as adapted for International 

Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view 

in accordance therewith. 

ii We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions and these matters have 

been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 

iii We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 

internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

iv Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 

measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

v We are satisfied that the material judgements used by us in the preparation of the financial 

statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code, and adequately disclosed in 

the financial statements. There are no further material judgements that need to be disclosed. 

vi We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of 

pension scheme liabilities for IAS19 disclosures are consistent with our knowledge.  We 

confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted 

for.  We also confirm that all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly 

accounted for (including any arrangements that are statutory, contractual or implicit in the 

employer’s actions, that arise in the UK or overseas, that are funded or unfunded). 

vii Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the code. 

viii All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the code requires adjustment or disclosure have been 

adjusted or disclosed.   

Page 56



 

 5 

ix We have not adjusted the misstatements brought to our attention in the Audit Findings 

report, which are considered to be immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial 

position at the year-end.  The financial statements are free of material misstatements, 

including omissions. 

x We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification 

of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xi We believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern 

basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than 

adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the 

Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements. 

Information Provided 

xii We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation 

of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your 

audit; and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xiii We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware. 

xiv All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 

financial statements. 

xv We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 

statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

xvi We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 

aware of and that affects the Council and involves: 

a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xvii We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected 

fraud, affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by employees, former 

employees, regulators or others. 

xviii We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 

financial statements. 

xix We have disclosed to you the entity of the Council's related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Page 57



 

 6 

xx We confirm that the assumptions made in determining the equal pay provision remain valid 

and the level of provision remains appropriate, taking account of all events since the year 

end. 

xxi We confirm that the accounts do not disclose a prudent estimate of the financial effect of the 

contingent liabilities for equal pay claims because the Council’s view is that the obligation 

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

xxii We confirm that our assessment of the Caludon Castle PFI contract remains valid and is not 

considered to be an onerous contract. 

xxiii We confirm that no impairment is required for the Council's loan to ACL included within long 

term debtors. 

Annual Governance Statement 

xxiv We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's 

risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any 

significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council's Audit and Procurement 

Committee at its meeting on 23 September 2013. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 
 

 
 

Chris West 
Executive Director of Resources 
 
23rd September 2013 
  
 

Page 58



abc Public report
Cabinet Report

  

 

                 
Cabinet                          3rd September 2013 
Audit and Procurement Committee                                                                16th September 2013 
 
Name of Cabinet Member:
Cabinet Member (Strategic Finance & Resources) – Councillor Gannon
 
Director approving submission of the report:
Executive Director, Resources 
 
Ward(s) affected:
City Wide 
 
Title:
2013/14 Quarter 1 Revenue and Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report (to June 
2013) 
 

 

 

Is this a key decision?
No 

 

 
 
Executive summary:
 
The purpose of this report is to advise Cabinet of the first quarter forecast outturn position for 
revenue and capital expenditure and to report on the Council’s treasury management activity in 
the first quarter of 2013/14.  
 
The current forecast for 2013/14 is a revenue overspend of £4m. This compares to a forecast 
balanced revenue position at the same point in 2012/13 and an outturn underspend in 2012/13 of 
£3.5m. The report outlines the actions planned to bring this position into balance. 
 
Capital spending in 2013/14 is projected to be £77.9m. This represents a net increase of £14.1m 
compared to the £63.8m February Budget Setting figure. This increase comprises £8.4m 
expenditure rescheduled from 2012/13, £11.3m new spending approvals, £5.5m rescheduling of 
expenditure into 2013/14 and a small underspend of £0.1m. Spending at this revised level will be 
met by resources identified previously. 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet is recommended to: 
 
1. Note the projected revenue overspend and endorse the proposed actions to balance the 

budgetary position by year-end. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 59



 

 

 
2. Approve the revised capital estimated outturn position for the year of £77.9m incorporating: 

(i) £11.3m increase in spending relating to approved/technical changes, (see Appendix 2),  

(ii) £5.5m net rescheduling of expenditure into 2013/14, (see Appendix 4). 

(iii) £0.1m net underspending on the programme. 
 
 
List of Appendices included:
 
Appendix 1   Revenue Position: Detailed Directorate breakdown of forecast outturn position 

Appendix 2   Capital Programme: Analysis of Budget/Technical Changes 

Appendix 3  Capital Programme: Period 3 Estimated Outturn 2013/14 

Appendix 4  Capital Programme: Analysis of Rescheduling  

Appendix 5  Prudential Indicators 
 

 
Other useful background papers: 
 
Budgetary Control 2013/14 File, location CRH 3 
 
Has it or will it be considered by scrutiny?  

No 

 
Has it, or will it be considered by any other council committee, advisory panel or other 
body? 
Yes. Audit and Procurement Committee 16th September 2013 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
No 

 
 

Page 60



 

 

Report Title: 
2013/14 Period 3 Revenue and Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report (to June 
2013) 
 
1. Context (or Background) 

 
1.1 Cabinet approved the City Council's revenue budget of £267.9m on the 26th February 2013 

and a capital programme of £63.8m.  This is the first quarterly monitoring report for 2013/14. 
 

1.2 The purpose of this report is to advise Cabinet of the first quarter forecast outturn position for 
revenue and capital expenditure and to report on the Council’s treasury management activity 
in the first quarter of 2013/14.  

 
1.3 The current forecast for 2013/14 is a revenue overspend of £4m. This compares to a 

forecast balanced revenue position at the same point in 2012/13 and an outturn underspend 
in 2012/13 of £3.5m. The report outlines the actions planned to bring this position into 
balance. 

 
1.4 Capital spend is projected to be £77.9m, an increase of £14.1m on the base programme due 

in large part to expenditure rescheduled from 2012/13 and new member approvals since the 
budget was set in February 2013. This spend will all be met by resources identified 
previously. 
 

 
2. Options considered and recommended proposal 
 
2.1  Revenue Forecast 
 

The Quarter 1 revenue budget monitoring exercise has identified an overall overspend of 
£4.0m. Table 1 below provides details of the forecast directorate variances. 

 
Table 1.  Forecast Variations  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The predicted directorate overspends are as a result of a combination of factors. There are 
some areas where ongoing levels of spend need to be brought under control, and others 
where income targets are under pressure due to the economic climate. Furthermore, there is 
also the effect of challenging savings targets, set within the Council’s abc Programme, where 
the actions required to achieve some of these savings have yet to be identified. Determining 
the actions necessary to deliver these savings remains a key focus of senior management at 
this time.  
 

Directorate 
Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Spend After 
Action/ Use 
of Reserves 

Net Forecast 
Variation 

  £m £m £m 

Chief Executives 5.4 5.4 0.0 

City Services and Development  29.1 30.4 1.3 

Children Learning and Young People 63.6 66.3 2.7 

Community Services 100.3 103.3 3.0 

Customer and Workforce 4.5 4.2 (0.3) 

Finance and Legal Services 4.8 5.5 0.7 

  207.7 215.1 7.4 

Contingency & Central Budgets 60.7 57.3 (3.4) 

Total 268.4 272.4 4.0 

Page 61



 

 

 
 
 
2.2 Individual Directorate Comments for Revenue Forecasts 
  

A summary of the forecast year-end variances is provided below. Further details are shown 
in Appendix 1. 
 
City Services and Development – Overspend £1.3m 
At period 3 the underlying Directorate position for 13/14 is a deficit of £1.8m. The largest part 
of this pressure relates to the ongoing deficit on the commercial portfolio (rent and rates void 
costs) caused by the difficult economic climate.  The remaining pressures relate primarily to 
a shortfall of income against targets for commercial waste and R&M.  Management action is 
in progress which together with minor underspends, reduces the overall net forecast outturn 
to a £1.3m deficit. 
 
Children, Learning and Young People - Overspend £2.7m 
The CLYP directorate continues to face substantial budgetary pressures as a result of 
continuing high activity within children's social care, including externally purchased 
residential and fostering placements. This has been further impacted on in 2013/14 by the 
non-delivery of the CLYP Social Care FSR activity targets. The programme of change from 
the CLYP FSR has now been implemented, but the activity reduction targets are not forecast 
to be achieved. This means the savings targets are not being delivered, and numbers of 
Looked After Children and Child protection cases are higher than when the FSR started. 
 
In addition a shortfall is forecast on the Education Service Grant of £0.2m. This is as a result 
of in-year academy conversion. £1.7m of underspends offset the overall overspend, and 
these are largely as a result of unspent provision for grant clawback and staffing vacancies. 
Overall the current CLYP forecast is a £2.7m overspend. 
 
Community Services – Overspend £3.0m 
The most significant pressure across the Directorate continues to be Community purchasing 
spend within Adult Social Care due to further reductions to resources, the fallout of one-off 
funding which supported the underlying position and increasing demand in services for 
young adults with learning disabilities. Work to manage these pressures continues through 
the A Bolder Community Services programme. 

 
Customer and Workforce Services – Underspend £0.3m 
The underspend position reported by CWS in Quarter One is £0.3m, made up predominantly 
of the overachievement of the Reed Agency rebate and an underspend on Organisational 
Development, offset by Equal Pay costs and overspends on ICT applications. 
 
Finance and Legal Services Overspend £0.7m 
This position is mainly attributable to one-off professional (legal) Fees incurred, and non-
achievement of court Income & credit card charge income and Procurement Services 
contract rebate income in Procurement Services. A number of Management Actions have 
been identified that will partially address the current issues. These issues will be closely 
monitored in the next quarter and mitigating action will be explored and implemented as 
appropriate. 

 
Contingency & Central Budgets – Underspend £3.4m 
The Asset Management Revenue Account reflects a £1.9m underspend as a result of lower 
interest and debt repayment profiles and delays in incurring prudential borrowing within the 
Capital Programme incorporating a multi-year dimension. Other significant underspends 
relate to lower than anticipated calls on energy cost contingencies (£0.4m) and pay/inflation 
contingencies (£1.5m). 
 

 

Page 62



 

 

2.3  Capital Position 2013/14 
 

The 2013/14 Budget Setting report (Cabinet 26th February 2013) approved a total capital 
programme for 2013/14 of £63.8m. Table 2 below updates the budget to take account of 
£11.3m approved/technical changes of which £5.5m relates to the new Sports Facilities at 
the AT7 Centre approved by Cabinet in March 2013. £8.4m of expenditure has been brought 
forward from 2012/13 and £5.5m is now planned to be carried forward into future years. This 
gives a revised projected level of expenditure for 2013/14 of £77.9m.  Appendix 3 provides 
an analysis by directorate of the movement since February. 

 
The Resources Available section of Table 2 explains how the capital programme will be 
funded in 2013/14. It shows that almost half of the capital programme is funded by external 
grant monies (45%), whilst 34% is funded from borrowing. The latest projections of capital 
receipts, arising predominantly from the sale of our assets, show £6.6m capital receipts 
expected by year end against a target level of £5.9m.  

 
 Overall the capital programme and associated resourcing reflects a forecast balanced 

position in 2013/14. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
2.4 Treasury Management Activity in 2013/14 

 
Interest Rates  
Notwithstanding more positive messages recently about the state of the economy it is clear 
that there are no plans in the near future to move from the Bank Rate. 

 
Long Term (Capital) Borrowing 
The net long term borrowing requirement for the 2013/14 capital programme is £13.7m, 
taking into account borrowing set out in Section 2.3 above (total £26.8m), less amounts to 
be set aside to repay debt, including non PFI related Minimum Revenue Provision 
(£13.1m). No long term borrowing has been taken out to date in 2013/14. The need to 
borrow will be kept under review in the light of a number of factors, including the anticipated 
level of capital spend, interest rate forecasts and the level of investment balances. 

 
 

Table 2. Movement in the Capital Budget   

  £m 

February 2013 Approved Directorates Programme  63.8 

Net rescheduling of expenditure from 2012/13 into 2013/14  8.4 

Revised Position After 2012/13 Outturn  72.2 

Approved/Technical Changes (see Appendix 2)  11.3 

"Net" Underspending  -0.1 

"Net" Rescheduling into future years (see Appendix 4)  -5.5 

Revised Estimated Outturn 2013/14  77.9 

 
Resources Available: 

  

Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing  26.8 

Grants and Contributions  35.1 

Capital Receipts  6.6 

Revenue Contributions  9.0 

Leasing  0.4 

Total Resources Available  77.9 

Page 63



 

 

During the first three months up to period 3, rates for Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) 
increased from 1.7% to a peak of 2.5%, currently 2.2% for 5 year shorter term loans and 
from 4.0% to 4.6%, currently 4.5% for longer term loans of 50 years. From late 2012 the 
PWLB has reduced borrowing rates by 0.2% below the standard rates above for qualifying 
authorities, including the City Council. This “certainty rate” initiative provides a small, but 
welcome reduction in the cost of future borrowing. This trend is set to be extended with the 
planned introduction of a “project rate” which will enable authorities, working with their 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), to access PWLB borrowing at 0.4% below the standard 
rate. 
 
Regular monitoring continues for opportunities to reschedule debt by early repayment of 
more expensive existing loans with less expensive new replacement loans, the current 
premiums payable on early redemption currently outweigh any potential savings. 

 
 Short Term (Temporary) Borrowing and Investments 

In managing the day to day cashflow of the authority short term borrowing or investments 
are undertaken with financial institutions and other public bodies. Up to Period 3, no 
temporary borrowing was undertaken, while the total volume of temporary investments was 
£217m, at an average rate of 0.46%. This rate of return reflects low risk investments for 
short to medium durations with UK banks, Money Market Funds, Certificates of Deposits, 
other Local Authorities as well as with the Government through the Debt Management 
Office (DMO).  
 
Investments made between April and June were for periods ranging from 1 day up to 12 
months with an average of 71 days. The total of these investments is analysed by type of 
institution: - 

 

 £m 

Banks and Building Societies 119 

Money Market Funds 40 

Certificates of Deposits 12 

Government Debt Management Office - 

Local Authorities 46 

Total 217 

   
External Investments 
In addition to the above in house investments, a mix of Collective Investment Schemes or 
“pooled funds” is used, where investment is in the form of sterling fund units and not 
specific individual investments with financial institutions or organisations. These funds are 
generally AAA rated, are highly liquid, as cash can be withdrawn within two to four days, 
and short average duration of the intrinsic investments. The intrinsic Sterling investments 
include Certificates of Deposits, Commercial Paper, Corporate Bonds, Floating Rate Notes 
and Call Account Deposits. However, they are designed to be held for longer durations 
allowing any short term fluctuations in return to be smoothed out.  
 
As at 30 June 2013 the Pooled funds were valued at £23.235m made up as follows. 

 

 
No of 
Share 
Units 

Cost 
£m 

Valuation 
£m 

Investec Liquidity Fund 900,000 0.9 0.907 

Investec Short Dated Bond 465,041 6.3 6.352 

Investec Target Return 1,446,248 1.8 1.862 

Payden Sterling Reserve 870,203 9.0 9.109 

Federated Prime Rate Cash Plus 4,958,842 5.0 5.005 

Total  23.0 23.235 

Page 64



 

 

 Prudential Indicators and the Prudential Code 
 
Under the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance authorities are free to borrow, subject 
to them being able to afford the revenue costs. The framework requires that authorities set 
and monitor against a number of Prudential Indicators relating to capital, treasury 
management and revenue issues. These indicators are designed to ensure that borrowing 
entered into for capital purposes was affordable, sustainable and prudent. The purpose of 
the indicators is to support decision making and financial management, rather than illustrate 
comparative performance. 
 
The indicators, together with the relevant figures as at 30th June 2013 are included in 
Appendix 5. This highlights that the City Council's activities are within the amounts set as 
Performance Indicators for 2013/14. Specific points to note on the ratios are: 

 

• The ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream (indicator 1) is 12.75% compared 
to 13.15% within the Treasury Management Strategy, due to lower levels of 
Prudential Borrowing resourced capital spend in 2012/13; 

 

• The Upper Limit on Variable Interest Rate Exposures (indicator 10) sets a maximum 
amount of net borrowing (borrowing less investments) that can be at variable interest 
rates. The Period 3 value is -£28.4m (minus) compared to +£80.8m within the 
Treasury Management Strategy, reflecting the fact that the Council has more variable 
rate investments than variable rate borrowings at the current time. 

 
 
3. Results of consultation undertaken
 
3.1 None 

 
 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 
4.1 There is no implementation timetable as this is a financial monitoring report. 
 
 
5. Comments from Executive Director, Resources 
 
5.1 Revenue 
 

The current forecast for 2013/14 is a projected overspend of £4m. 
 
The financial position facing the Council remains very challenging for 2013/14 with continued 
implementation of the cuts in formula and specific grants. In parallel with this the Council 
remains committed to the implementation locally of a number of very significant ABC service 
reviews that are aimed at achieving large savings. Whilst it is important to reiterate that the 
2013/14 budget is a robust one this report reflects that there are some areas with challenging 
budget pressures that need to be addressed. 

 
In particular it is clear that problems remain in delivering the changes required to achieve 
savings through the CLYP FSR, compounded by further funding changes in the Education & 
schools sector. In addition, Community Services is in the early stages of delivering the very 
large savings required in its FSR whilst at the same time managing the fall-out of several 
one-off sources of funding received in previous years. These financial issues together with 
smaller ones across other directorates have created the initial projected over-spend reported 
here. 
 

Page 65



 

 

Officer action over the next quarter will continue to focus on delivery of FSR savings as a 
fundamental piece of business as usual. In addition it is expected that all other areas of 
budgetary overspend will be expected to explore options to move back towards budgetary 
balance. Finally, it is expected that hard to predict central budgets, in particular the Asset 
Management Revenue Account will be revisited to refine year-end projections, with the 
potential for the level of reported underspend to increase towards the year-end. 
 

 
5.2 Capital 
 

The capital programme shows a projected balanced position for 2013/14.  
 
It is important to note that whilst the borrowing requirement in 2013/14 has risen to £26.8m 
(Budget Setting report £8.1m) the overall level of borrowing continues to be constrained 
within previously approved parameters with revisions as appropriate to incorporate new 
spending on major capital investment such as the AT7 Centre and the Friargate Building. 
 
Of the £26.8m borrowing now forecast, £18.2m relates to spending on specific schemes 
approved by Cabinet. The remaining £8.6m predominantly relates to borrowing that has 
previously been approved but not undertaken. Cabinet will recall that at the end of 2012/13 
available external grant funding was used to fund spending which had been forecast to be 
funded from prudential borrowing. This report incorporates the need to now call on the 
associated level of Prudential Borrowing approvals not utilised in 2012/13. Similarly, there 
will be a need to incorporate in future years as capital spending is incurred. 
 
The Executive Director, Resources will review the overall level of prudential borrowing 
undertaken in 2013/14 together with other sources of funding as part of the year end process 
and continue to re-evaluate future capital spending profiles taking into account economic 
circumstances, the ability to generate capital receipts and the profile of other areas of 
significant investment managed by the Council.  
 
 

5.3  Legal implications 
None 

 
6. Other implications
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the council's key objectives / corporate 

priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / LAA (or Coventry 
SCS)?
The council strives to monitor the quality and level of service provided to the citizens of 
Coventry and the key objectives of the Sustainable Community Strategy despite financial 
pressures. As far as possible we will try to deliver better value for money in the services that 
we provide and achieving the same or better level of service with fewer resources. 

 
6.2 How is risk being managed? 

The need to deliver a stable and balanced financial position in the short and medium term is 
a key corporate risk for the local authority and is reflected in the corporate risk register. 
Budgetary control and monitoring processes are paramount to managing this risk and this 
report is a key part of the process. 

 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 

In Quarter 1 there is a forecasted overspend which we are actively seeking further 
management actions to achieve a balanced budget. 
 

 

Page 66



 

 

6.4 Equalities / EIA 
 None 
 
6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment

No impact 
 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations?
 None 
 
 
Report author(s):  
 
Name and job title: Paul Jennings, Finance Manager.
Directorate: Resources 
Tel and email contact: 024 7683 3753 – paul.jennings@coventry.gov.uk 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors:     

Ian Brindley Lead Accountant Resources 15-8-13 19-8-13 

Michael Rennie Lead Accountant Resources 15-8-13 19-8-13 

Paul Jennings Finance Manager Resources 15-8-13 15-8-13 

Neil Chamberlain Finance Manager Resources 15-8-13 15-8-13 
Phil Helm Finance Manager Resources 15-8-13 15-8-13 
Paul Whitmore Lead Accountant Resources 15-8-13 15-8-13 
Brian Walsh Exec Director, People People 19-8-13 20-8-13 

Martin Yardley Exec Director, Place Place 19-8-13 20-8-13 

Michelle Salmon Governance Services 
Officer 

Resources 15-8-13 19-8-13 

Names of approvers: 
(officers and members) 

    

Finance: Barry Hastie Assistant Director, 
Resources 

Resources 15-8-13 21-8-13 

Legal: Carol Bradford Legal Officer Resources 15-8-13 19-8-13 

Exec Director: Chris West Exec Director, Resources Resources 15-8-13 22-8-13 

Members: Cllr Gannon Cabinet Member 
(Strategic Finance and 
Resources) 

 19-8-13 21-8-13 

 
This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/cmis 
 
 
 

Page 67



 

 

 
Appendix 1 

 
Revenue Position: Detailed Directorate Breakdown of Forecasted Outturn Position 
 
Appendix 1 details directorates forecasted variances, breaking down between on going and one 
off, also detailing whether the variance is due to a change in activity or an increase/decrease in 
cost: 
 
City Services and Development Directorate 
 

 
Overspends 
 
Property & Asset Management – Commercial Portfolio 
Despite continuing efforts to maintain footfall and boost economic activity through competitive 
rental terms, support to pop-up shops and other initiatives, the downturn in rental income and 
void rates continues. The strategic property FSR is intending to address the current pressure 
levels as part of the fundamental review. 
 
Planning, Transport & Highways – Transportation & Traffic Management 
The main pressures relate to predicted one-off costs associated with HS2 and highway related 
income targets. 
 
Streetscene & Greenspace – Domestic Waste & Recycling 
The pressure relates to both the cost of additional collections, and also higher cost of running the 
fleet. 
 
Property & Asset Management – Repair & Maintenance 
This pressure reflects a projected net trading pressure primarily due to lower than required 
activity levels. 
 
Streetscene & Greenspace – Streetpride  
The deficit largely reflects the requirement to maintain service continuity by use of casual 
operatives, together with lost business on schools/external work. 
 
 
Streetscene & Greenspace – Commercial Waste 
The service has a challenging income target made more difficult by the current economic 
situation. 
 

KEY VARIANCES £m 

Overspends:  

Property & Asset Management – Commercial  Portfolio 0.6 

Planning, Transport & Highways – Transport & Traffic Management 0.3 

Property & Asset Management – Repairs & Maintenance 0.2 

Streetscene & Greenspace – Domestic Waste 0.2 

Streetscene & Greenspace  - Streetpride 0.2 

Streetscene & Greenspace – Commercial Waste 0.3 

Underspends:  

Management Actions  
Other Variations Less than 100k 

(0.4) 
(0.1) 

Outturn Overspend 1.3 

Page 68



 

 

 
 
 
Underspends 
 
Management Action 
Management actions are being taken to identify savings to offset the overall adverse position for 
the directorate.   
 
Children, Learning and Young People Directorate 

 
 
Overspends 
 
Children’s Placements (FSR) – (Internal & External Fostering, Internal & External 
Residential care, including transport costs) 
 
The £2.6m overspend is a combination of existing activity pressure and further activity pressure 
forecast for 13/14. LAC numbers were on average 586 in the 12/13 financial year, but at quarter 
1 they have risen to 612. In addition the number of Internal Foster placements has not increased 
in line with expectations meaning we need to increasingly continue to use External Fostering 
placements, which are more expensive. We are not currently forecasting any reduction in LAC 
throughout the year, this will be reviewed at quarter 2, but we are forecasting a net increase in 
internal foster care places of 23 in line with the agreed FSR targets.   
 
Legal Services 
Costs in this area continue to be driven by high activity levels of Looked after Children.– 108 
cases are expected this year against 111 last year The forecast is based on last year’s outturn as 
the number of cases are similar, but it has reduced as significant one-off court fees were incurred 
in 2012/13, and this year’s barrister fees are expected to be lower given the legislation introduced 
which will reduce court time.  
 
 

KEY VARIANCES £m 

Overspends:  

Children’s Placements (FSR) 2.6 

Legal Fees 0.3 

Section 17 Payments 0.3 

Fostering & Adoption  0.2 

Education Service Grant 0.2 

Schools Catering Service 0.2 

Supported Accommodation Contracts 0.1 

Premature Retirement Costs 0.1 

Other overspends under £100k 0.4 

Underspends:   

Provision for Clawback (Children’s Centres) (0.3) 

Children & Family First Service  (0.2) 

Community Based Assessment Service (0.1) 

LAC Caseholding (0.1) 

Other underspends under £100k (1.0) 

Forecast Overspend 2.7 

Page 69



 

 

 
 
 
Section 17 Payments 
The spend fluctuates throughout the year and is reactive depending on the number of cases. 
 
The pressure on this budget is due to increased case activity which:- 

• In line with Public Law Outline, a number of expert assessments are commissioned prior 
to cases entering the court arena.  These can cost in the region of £1,000 to £3,500 each. 

• Social Care is paying a number of bonds so that families are able to access privately 
rented accommodation and exit out of temporary accommodation.  Although reluctant to 
provide this support, it is more cost effective.  During the year work was undertaken with 
Housing Services to manage the use of emergency accommodation across the council. 
Although in its infancy, this work has not had any significant impact on reducing the 
demands on this budget.  

• An increasing number of families are approaching Social Care for financial assistance 
due to issues relating to receipt of their benefits. 

 These additional pressures have resulted in a forecast overspend of £0.3m 
 
Fostering & Adoption 
The pressures in this area are largely a result of using agency staff to cover vacancies. If posts 
can be filled permanently we will be able to reduce the agency forecast. Significant pressure in 
this area to deliver on increasing internal foster carers, adoption, and so on means that the 
service is not able to run with vacancies.  
 
Education Services Grant (ESG) 
The former academy top-slice arrangements have been replaced with ESG. Each Local 
Authority’s former LEA functions are now funded by ESG rather than core budget. We receive 
£15 per pupil for all city schools, £116 per pupil for pupils in maintained schools, £495 per pupil 
for pupils in maintained special schools, £437 per pupil for pupils in PRUs. Adjustments are done 
on a real time basis. This means that as academies convert in year we lose resource. Our 
current estimate is that this will create an in-year pressure of £0.2m. The ongoing impact of this 
will be built into the MTFS from 2014/15. 
 
Schools Catering Service 
Catering service continues to recover its direct costs and contribution to corporate overheads but 
is not forecast to meet FSR targets for take up of school meals.  However this shortfall has been 
partly offset by use of £81k residual School Meals Grant in 2013/14 only. 
 
Supported Accommodation 
Delays in tendering for the Supported Accommodation contract and an increase in the 
requirement for more expensive spot purchased supported accommodation placements due to 
an increase in young people reaching the age of 16/17 has resulted in an  overspend.  The 
tender for the Supported Accommodation for Young People 16-24 contract is due to commence 
in December 2013 and is forecast to reduce the overspend in 2013/14 and achieve budgetary 
savings in 2014/15.  
 
Underspends 
 
Provision for Clawback (Children’s Centres) 
Provision was made for potential grant clawback in 2012/13 in relation to Children’s Centres. 
DFE have confirmed that they will not clawback grant funding so provision is no longer needed. 
 
Children and Family First Service 
The underspend is due to ongoing vacancies in this area. Further recruitment is planned. 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



 

 

 
Community Based Assessment Service 
The underspend is the result of staff vacancies that will be recruited to in-year. 
 
LAC Caseholding 
The underspend is the result of staff vacancies that will be recruited to in-year. 
 
Community Services Directorate 
 

 
 
Overspends 
 
Adult Social Care Community Purchasing 
The Adult Social Care Community Purchasing spend reflects external packages of care across 
all service user groups. 
 
Continuing sustained pressure on the budget arising from high service demand with the highest 
areas of pressure relating to older people being supported to live at home and increasing 
numbers of young adults with a Learning Disability.  
 
Housing: Housing and Advice  
The rate of homelessness continues to result in an overspend on temporary accommodation and 
associated costs.  
 
ABCS Programme 
The ABCS Programme is working to manage significant reductions in resources up to 2016. This 
cost relates to the programme management costs which will ultimately be resourced from the 
savings delivered.  
 
Libraries 
This relates to a forecast shortfall in income due to loss of rental income and a general decline in 
the demand for other goods/services. 
 
Underspends 
 
Neighbourhood Wardens 
Salary underspends forecast due to staff vacancies which are being held pending the outcome of 
the Neighbourhood Working Review. 
 
Community Safety Initiatives 
Savings arising from the reprioritisation of projects and reduced spend on Community Safety 
Initiatives. 
 

KEY VARIANCES £m 

Overspends:  
Community Purchasing 3.7 
Housing: Temporary Accommodation/Homelessness 0.1 
ABCS Programme 0.1 
Libraries 0.1 
Community Services – other overspends below £100k 0.4 

Underspends:   
Neighbourhood Wardens (0.3) 
Community Safety Initiatives (0.5) 
Strategic Commissioning (0.2) 
New Homes For Old (0.3) 
Healthwatch (0.1) 

Forecast Overspend 3.0 

Page 71



 

 

Strategic Commissioning 
The forecast underspend relates to salary savings and savings on a number of contracts. 
 
New Homes for Old 
This variation arises from both a reduction in cost compared to budget as well as an increase of 
income against budget from client care contributions. 
 
Healthwatch 
Forecast savings following the introduction of the proposed arrangements for the establishment 
of a local Healthwatch in Coventry. 
 
Customer and Workforce Services Directorate 
 

 
Overspend 
 
ICT 
Overspends are mainly on running cost budgets, including a forecast overspend on Application 
Management, which will be closely managed throughout 2013/14 to keep the overspend to a 
minimum. ICT are currently assuming full achievement of income targets. 
 
Underspends 
 
Customer Services 
The position reported by Customer Services is made up largely from underspends on 
Organisational Development.  
 
HR 
The underspend forecast by HR includes a large overachievement of the Reed Agency rebate 
income. This offsets other shortfalls in other income generated by HR and also offsets costs that 
are being incurred in relation to Equal Pay claims. 
 
Finance and Legal Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 

KEY VARIANCES £m 

Overspends:  
ICT 0.1 

Underspends:   
HR (0.3) 
Customer Service (0.1) 

Forecast Underspend (0.3) 

KEY VARIANCES £m 

Overspends: 
Management Team 
Revenues 
Benefits 
Procurement 

 
0.3 
0.4 
0.2 
0.2 

Underspends : 
Legal 
Management Action 

 
(0.1) 
(0.3) 

Forecast Overspend / (Underspend) 0.7 

Page 72



 

 

Overspends 
 
Management Team - £255k net overspend 
Overspend on Running costs due to one-off Professional fees on Legal costs. Plus overspend on 
salaries relating to non-achievement of savings target for ABSS & supplies & services top-slice.  
 
Revenues - £356k net overspend 
Revenues are reporting an £356K overspend primarily as follows :  
- On-going non achievement of Court Income £174k. Option being explored of off-setting some of 
the income target against over achievement of Council Tax recovery.   
- Credit card charges income £43k predicted not achievable in 2013/14   
 - Bank Charges overspend £43k     
- Salaries underspend £23k     
- Council Tax Annual Billing charges £55k     
- Cost of Court Fees £32k     
- Advance Cheque fees no longer being charged £7k as part of CEC charges   
 
Housing Benefits - £215k net overspend 
Housing Benefit Administation is reporting a £547K underspend broken down as follows:  
- Salaries inc agency spend & non-achievement of Management of Vacancies & Single Status 
£298k  
- Admin grant reduction £288k     
- Welfare Reform Grants received as a one-off £368k     
 
Procurement (inc. Accounts Payable) – £178k net overspend 
Salary overspend £15k offset by running costs underspend £5k. Shortfall on income £168k due 
to loss of rebates due to changes in expenditure patterns/recharges. 
 
Underspends 
 
Legal Services - £58k net underspend 
Salary overspend £99k & running costs underspend of £30k. Plus over-achievement of income 
£127k from Registry office, Land & Record charges, Court awards, Schools income & general 
fees. 
 
Management Actions  
a) Address directorate savings for ABSS & supplies & services top-slice £114k 
b) Credit card charges to be addressed corporately £43k 
c) Savings to offset Armchair Audit £24k 
d) Welfare Reform initiative £100k draw down reserves 
 
Contingency & Central Budgets 
 

KEY VARIANCES £m 

Overspends: 
Demand Management Savings 

 
0.5 

Other Service Areas (less than £0.1m) 0.1 

Underspends:  
Asset Management Revenue Account (1.9) 
Energy (0.4) 
Pay & Inflation Contingencies (1.5) 
Policy Contingency (0.2) 

Forecast Underspend (3.4) 

 
Overspends 
 
Demand Management Saving 
No clear actions have been identified to deliver this saving at this stage. 

Page 73



 

 

 
Underspends 
 
Asset Management Revenue Account 
The final 2012/13 outturn position for the Asset Management Revenue Account (AMRA) showed 
an underspend of £2.5m, reflecting a continuation of lower interest and debt repayment profiles 
and delays in incurring prudential borrowing within the Capital Programme. Much of this 
underspend has an on-going dimension to it and is therefore likely to re-occur in 2013/14. 
Therefore, the AMRA is reflecting a significant projected underspend at quarter 1. This may be 
compounded by further capital spend rescheduling reported at 2013/14 outturn and the position 
could therefore improve towards the end of the year. Much of the under-spend may crystallise 
into an on-going saving which will be able to be applied to the 2014/15 Budget Setting process. 
 
Energy 
During 2013/14 budget setting a provision was made to cover the anticipated increases in energy 
costs. However, revised predictions are that this will not all be needed, leading to a £0.4m 
underspend. 
 
Pay & Inflation Contingencies 
The current expectation is that the budget for contingencies to cover pay, inflation and 
superannuation related costs will be underspent by £1.5m 
 
Policy Contingency 
No further plans to spend Policy Contingency resources. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 

 

 
Appendix 2 

       
Capital Programme: Analysis of Budget/Technical Changes 
 

SCHEME EXPLANATION £m 

 

CHILDREN LEARNING & YOUNG PEOPLE 

Basic Need 
Realignment of budget consistent with actual Department For Education (DfE) 

capital allocations. 
0.4 

SUB-TOTAL – Children, Learning & Young People 0.4 

 

CITY SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT 

AT7 Centre 
Improving the quality of sports facilities in the north east of the city including a 

new 25 metre swimming pool (Cabinet 5th March 2013). 
5.5 

A4600 Congestion 

Relief Scheme  

Department for Transport grant funding for an access improvement scheme to 

reduce congestion, support new bus services and provide new facilities for 

pedestrians and cyclists on the A4600 and routes accessing the University 

Hospital in Walsgrave (Cabinet 13
th

 August 2013). 

0.4 

Far Gosford Street 
Realignment of budget consistent with resources available and spending plans 

across the various strands of the Far Gosford Street package of schemes. 
(0.5) 

Banner Lane - S106 

funding  

Realignment of budget consistent with more precise estimates of the value of 

the actual schemes to be delivered in this financial year. 
(0.2) 

Hinckley Road Cycle 

Scheme 

Grant funding has been earmarked as a contribution to Cycle works that will 

take place as part of the Local Pinch Point Scheme in Walsgrave. 
0.2 

International 

Transport Museum 

Investment to restore the 12th Century Old Grammar School and to create new 

exhibition and event space and to create a new entrance for the Museum. This 

scheme will incorporate demolition of properties adjacent to the Museum in 

Hales Street owned by the City Council and is funded from £3.1m European 

Regional Development Fund (ERDF) monies. (Cabinet 16th April 2013). 

0.3 

Kickstart – Friargate 

Building 

Development of a new office based district at Friargate. Year 1 project delivery 

costs funded from the City Deals package (Cabinet 16th June 2013). 
0.2 

Parking Meters 
Extending the introduction of pay-on-street parking to other areas of the city 

that are within walking distance of the city centre. (Cabinet 23rd April 2013).  
0.1 

Property Repairs 

Following the Strategic Property Review, the Property Repairs programme will 

be managed within a level of corporate funding reduced from £2.75m to 

£2.25m. 
(0.5) 

Page 75



 

 

Public Realm Phase 2 Phase 2 city centre public realm works. (Update Report - Cabinet 9th July 2013). 2.3 

Regional Growth 

Fund 

The Coventry & Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (CWLEP) has been 

successful in securing significant public funding for economic growth and 

development within the sub-region. (Cabinet 12th February 2013). This 

programme addition reflects 2013/14 spending projections on the Friargate 

Bridge Deck, Whitley Interchange and the M40 Junction. 

2.3 

Vehicle & Plant 

Replacement 
Budget realignment consistent with condition assessment and service reviews. 0.2 

SUB-TOTAL – City Services & Development 10.3 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 

Tackling Fuel Poverty 
Department of Energy & Climate Change grant funding to tackle fuel poverty in 

Coventry (Cabinet 14th April 2013). 
0.8 

SUB-TOTAL – Community Services 0.8 

 

CUSTOMER & WORKFORCE SERVICES 

Strategic ICT Reclassified as revenue expenditure within existing budget approval. (0.2) 

SUB-TOTAL – Customer & Workforce Services (0.2) 

 

TOTAL PROGRAMME CHANGES 11.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 76



 

 

 
 

Appendix 3 
 
 
Capital Programme: Period 3 Estimated Outturn 2013/14  
 
The table below presents the revised estimated outturn for 2013/14. 
 

DIRECTORATE 

FEB 2013 

DIRECTORATE 

PROGRAMME 

£M 

APPROVED / 

TECHNICAL 

CHANGES 

£M 

OVER / UNDER 

SPEND NOW 

REPORTED 

£M 

RESCHEDULED 

EXPENDITURE 

NOW REPORTED 

£M 

REVISED 

ESTIMATED 

OUTTURN 13-14 

£M 

Children, Learning & Young People 21.0 0.4 0 (0.4) 21.0 

City Services & Development 43.7 10.3 (0.1) (7.1) 46.8 

Community Services 2.7 0.8 0 0 3.5 

Customer & Workforce Services 4.8 (0.2) 0 2.0 6.6 

TOTAL 72.2 11.3 (0.1) (5.5) 77.9 

 
 
 

* The "Feb 2013 Directorate Programme" figure presented in the above table reflects the capital 
programme as presented in the February Budget Setting report, revised to take into account the 
net impact of rescheduling expenditure between 2012/13 and 2013/14.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 

 

 
Appendix 4 

 
        
Capital Programme: Analysis Of Rescheduling  
 

SCHEME EXPLANATION £m 

 

CHILDREN LEARNING & YOUNG PEOPLE 

Schools Condition 
Resources have now been earmarked for delivery of condition and basic need 

schemes in 2014/15 
(0.4) 

SUB-TOTAL – Children, Learning & Young People (0.4) 

 

CITY SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT 

NUCKLE (Coventry to 

Nuneaton railway 

upgrade scheme) 

The overall NUCKLE programme is not slipping beyond the original end date. 

However the preferred procurement route will result in construction works 

taking place in 2014/15. The reduction in the 13/14 programme is to reflect the 

reprofiling of the budget to match the construction phase.     

(4.7) 

Canley Regeneration 
Prior Deram Park works will take place over 3 financial years with the majority 

of the spend now expected to be incurred in 2014/15 
(0.2) 

Coventry & Warks 

Enterprise & 

Business Growth 

Package 

Revised to reflect the agreed change request with Dept for Communities & 

Local Government in June 2013.  The programme is experiencing some slippage 

as grants are offered to businesses and time is needed to spend and claim the 

ERDF grant monies. 

(0.3) 

Play Areas Due to delays in the procurement process. (0.7) 

Vehicle & Plant 

Replacement 

Some vehicles have been assessed, and can run on for a further year, providing 

a financial benefit to the authority and the acquisition of three refuse vehicles 

has been deferred due to a staggered replacement program.  

(1.1) 

Miscellaneous Net Rescheduling (0.1) 

SUB-TOTAL – City Services & Development (7.1) 

 

CUSTOMER & WORKFORCE SERVICES 

Strategic ICT 
Comprises accelerated spending across a number of projects including 

Customer Connect and Network Modernisation.  
2.0 

SUB-TOTAL – Customer & Workforce Services 2.0 

 

TOTAL RESCHEDULING (5.5) 

 
 

 

Page 78



 

 

 
Appendix 5 

Prudential Indicators 
 

Indicator 

per Treasury 

Management 

Strategy 

As at 30
th

 

June 2013 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream (Indicator 1), 

illustrating the affordability of costs such as interest charges to the 

overall City Council bottom line resource (the amount to be met 

from government grant and local taxpayers). 

13.15% 12.75% 

Gross Borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the 

estimated Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) at the end of 3 

years (Indicator 3), illustrating that, over the medium term, net 

borrowing (borrowing less investments) will only be for capital 

purposes. The CFR is defined as the Council's underlying need to 

borrow, after taking account of other resources available to fund 

the capital programme. 

Year 3 

estimate / 

limit of 

£451.1m 

£358.8m 

Gross 

borrowing 

within the 

limit. 

Authorised Limit for External Debt (Indicator 6), representing the 

"outer" boundary of the local authority's borrowing. Borrowing at 

the level of the authorised limit might be affordable in the short 

term, but would not be in the longer term. It is the forecast 

maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected 

movements. This is a statutory limit. 

£464.7m 

£358.8m 

is less than 

the 

authorised 

limit. 

Operational Boundary for External Debt (Indicator 7), representing 

an "early" warning system that the Authorised Limit is being 

approached. It is not in itself a limit, and actual borrowing could 

vary around this boundary for short times during the year. It should 

act as an indicator to ensure the authorised limit is not breached. 

£420.7m 

£358.8m 

is less than 

the 

operational 

boundary. 

Upper Limit on Fixed Rate Interest Rate Exposures (Indicator 10), 

highlighting interest rate exposure risk. The purpose of this 

indicator is to contain the activity of the treasury function within 

certain limits, thereby reducing the risk or likelihood of an adverse 

movement in interest rates or borrowing decisions impacting 

negatively on the Council’s overall financial position. 

£403.8 £206.9m 

Upper Limit on Variable Rate Interest Rate Exposures (Indicator 

10), as above highlighting interest rate exposure risk. 
£80.8m -£28.4m 

Maturity Structure Limits (Indicator 11), highlighting the risk arising 

from the requirement to refinance debt as loans mature: 
  

< 12 months 0% to 15% 12% 

12 months – 24 months 0% to 20% 13% 

24 months – 5 years 0% to 20% 0% 

5 years – 10 years 0% to 30% 5% 

10 years + 40% to 100% 70% 

   

Investments Longer than 364 Days (Indicator 12), highlighting the 

risk that the authority faces from having investments tied up for 

this duration. 

£15m £0 

 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



abc Public report

 
 

 

 

Audit and Procurement Committee 23 September 2013 
 
 
Name of Cabinet Member:  
Cabinet Member (Strategic Finance and Resources) – Councillor Gannon 
 
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Director of Finance and Legal Services 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Title: 
Progress on Matters Raised by the 2011/12 Annual Audit Letter  
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
No  

 
Executive Summary: 
 
This report identifies the progress made and current position with regard to the 4 issues raised in 
the 2011/12 Annual Audit Letter reported to the then Audit Committee on 31st October 2012 
(minute 34/12 refers) and considered further by the Committee on 10th April 2013. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Audit and Procurement Committee is recommended to: 
(1) Agree that the progress made and current position represent an appropriate response to 

the issues raised, and 
(2) Identify any further action that the Committee requires be undertaken by officers.  

 
List of Appendices included: None 
 
Other useful background papers: None 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny? No  
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?  
No  
 
Will this report go to Council?  No  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 81



 

 2 

Progress on Matters Raised by the 2011/12 Annual Audit Letter  
 
 
1. Context (or background) 
 
1.1 This report identifies the progress made and current position with regard to the four issues 

raised in the 2011/12 Annual Audit Letter reported to the then Audit Committee on 31st 
October 2012 (minute 34/12 refers) and considered further by the Committee on 10th April 
2013. 
 

1.2 In summary, the four issues were as follows: 
 
Medium Term Financial Position 
Challenges were identified in relation to the Council balancing its budget in the context of 
budget gaps forecasted, savings already achieved and further savings identified within the 
Council’s Transformation Programme. In particular the original report stressed that the 
Council will need to continue to ensure that it is maintaining realistic savings plans and 
monitor their implementation. 
 
Proposals for Business Rate Retention 
A risk to the Council’s financial position was highlighted resulting from the proposals for 
local Business Rates Retention. The original report noted the mitigating factors including 
specific budget provision in the Council’s medium term financial plans, work streams within 
the abs programme to identify how best to promote business rates growth and the planned 
business rates pool with all authorities within Warwickshire. 

 
Council Tax Benefit Reform 
A risk was identified in relation to plans to localise council tax benefit (support) including a 
10% cut in funding for benefit and new operational and IT system challenges of maintaining 
a local scheme. 

 
Replacement of the Financial Information System 
Risks highlighted around the Council’s new financial information system planned for 
December 2013 which will replace the general ledger, accounts payable and accounts 
receivable. In particular the Council was advised to assess if there are any lessons to be 
learned from other Councils that have recently implemented a new financial information 
system and to ensure that Internal Audit should play a key role in ensuring that controls are 
adequately designed and operating effectively. 

 
2. Options considered and recommended proposal 
 
2.1 Audit and Procurement Committee is recommended to agree that the progress made and 

current position reflected in sections 2.3 to 2.6 below represent an appropriate response to 
the issues raised. 
 

2.2 An additional (or alternative) recommendation is for Committee to identify any further action 
that the Committee requires be undertaken by officers.  
 
Medium Term Financial Position 
 

2.3 The Council approved its 2013/14 revenue budget on 26th February 2013 including new 
savings from Abs reviews amounting to £44m over the next three years. The report was 
quite clear in recognising the achievement of these savings as being fundamental in 
ensuring that the Council maintains a balanced budget and in identifying that their 
achievement represented a massive challenge. The Council now has a significant track 

Page 82



 

 3 

record in achieving savings through the Abs process based on an established programme 
management approach, constructive partnership working with PWC in support of this and 
increasing member involvement in reviews.  
 

2.4 The achievement of abc savings is considered by senior officers as part of a separate 
reporting mechanism through the Transformation Programme Board. In addition, members 
are informed through an annual monitoring report. This has been considered most recently 
by Cabinet on 18th June and the Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board on 29th 
July. In addition, periodic all-member seminars are held to consider progress on the 
programme. Any anticipated failure to achieve savings is identified as part of the quarterly 
budgetary control reporting mechanism. 
 

2.5 In terms of past performance the most recent report to Scrutiny reported the achievement 
of £18.9m of abc savings in 2012/13 compared to a target of £19.2m. However, it is 
important to be aware that as further new areas of savings are identified there continues to 
be a risk that some of these may prove difficult to achieve. Where this happens it is 
important that this is reflected in setting subsequent budgets and there have been several 
instances (Money Matters, CLYP FSR) where such adjustments have been made in recent 
years. The ultimate test of whether robust budgets have been set lies in the achievement of 
balanced or near-balanced outturn positions each year. The 2012/13 outturn position 
reflected an underspend of £3.5m and continues a regular recent trend of similar such 
underspends. 
 
 

Proposals For Business Rate Retention 
 

2.6 As indicated in the original Audit Letter, the Council’s budget for 2013/14 contains some 
budget provision to allow for the potential risk in the volatility of Business Rate income. This 
includes a prudent allowance for bad debt, an amount set aside for successful back-dated 
appeals and specific provision against the risk that the overall (underlying) level of 
Business Rates could go down. In addition to the underlying budget risks faced in this area, 
the Council has set itself a challenging savings target of £2m (in 2014/15) rising to £3m 
from 2015/16 onwards for which a fundamental service review has been established 
entitled Strategic Regeneration and Business Rate Growth.  
 

2.7 The review, which is seeking to protect and grow the City Council’s Business Rate 
revenue, has three major work-streams. One of these is considering the existing Business 
Rates service including the efficiency of collection, whether the rating list is accurate and 
reviewing the Council’s relief policies. As part of this strand, two new Business Rates 
inspectors have been employed to, amongst other things, to ensure that all properties are 
included on the rating list, to identify whether ratings appear to be up to date through 
identification of whether properties are empty and what the current property use is. Also, 
work has begun to review the Council’s Discretionary Relief Policy. Any change to the 
policy will be brought to members for formal approval in due course. 
 

2.8 The second strand includes examination and comparison of a range of financial 
interventions that the Council could deploy to encourage business and business rate 
growth. These interventions might include loans and/or grants to businesses, help to 
provide suitable business premises and infra-structure works to help enable specific 
business developments. This strand involves development of a Coventry Investment Fund, 
utilising part of the City Deal monies approved as part of 2013/14 Budget Setting, and 
providing investment through a potential combination of grants and loans to support 
Businesses across Coventry. A formal report is anticipated will be brought before members 
in the Autumn. 
 

Page 83



 

 4 

2.9 The final strand involves consideration of the Council’s existing regeneration service and 
the degree to which it is aligned with and effective in the objective of growing the city’s 
Business Rates. As part of this third strand, the Council’s Business Investment Team is 
focussing on supporting businesses to invest and grow and take on new premises and on 
providing access to finance to support growth in business rates.  
 

2.10 Overall, new monitoring protocols are being established for Business Rate income to 
ensure that it can be monitored rigorously through the year incorporating both the collection 
rate and fluctuations in the underlying level of Business Rates. This is a challenging area to 
monitor accurately due to the potential for large retrospective changes to Business Rates 
as a result of appeals. Notwithstanding, monitoring in the early part of the financial year 
indicates no significant movement in the underlying level of Business Rates – i.e. no 
discernible major upturn in new Business Rates but no significant major decreases either. 
 

2.11 The Council’s involvement in the Coventry and Warwickshire Business Rate Pool should 
give a further opportunity to protect the Council’s overall revenue from Business Rates. The 
financial modelling for the Pool has indicated that the Council, alongside those in 
Warwickshire, is likely to benefit financially from its involvement in the Pool and this has 
been confirmed by informal monitoring returns in the early part of the year. 
 

Council Tax Benefit Reform 
 

2.12 The key risks in this area were originally linked to the implementation of a new scheme for 
Council Tax Benefit, the need for new ICT arrangements to accommodate this and the 
financial risks associated with it. In the event, the Council approved a local scheme that 
mirrors the national scheme in a way that has substantially mitigated these risks. This has 
meant that the Council has been able to implement a more straightforward system solution 
from our ICT supplier (one which will be common across a number of other authorities) and 
has avoided the threat of cutting benefit payments at a local level (and collecting very small 
amounts of Council Tax from a large number of tax-payers unaccustomed to having to pay 
this).  
 

2.13 The Welfare Reform Project Board has met on a regular basis for a period of over a year 
and has overseen the policy, system and operational issues that have arisen in this area. 
Arrangements for administering the local Council Tax Reduction scheme have been in 
place since 1st April and the Reduction Scheme has been reflected within the annual bills 
sent out in March. As well as continuing to maintain the new scheme (which is now 
business as usual) the focus now turns to monitoring the cost of the Reduction Scheme. 
The risk of Council Tax Reduction Scheme costs (the equivalent of Council Tax Benefit) will 
fall to the Council from now on for which the Government will provide finite and un-
hypothecated funding. This is a specific item monitored within the Council’s regular 
financial monitoring mechanisms and the early part of the year has seen this figure remain 
relatively constant. 
 

Replacement of Financial Information System 
 

2.14 The Council’s Project partner, Unit 4, have wide experience of implementing the Agresso 
financial information system to local government customers and have been able to share 
this knowledge in helping the Council to benefit from the successes and avoid some of the 
pitfalls that other local authorities have experienced in previous implementations. This has 
been further tested and reinforced by way of either discussions with or site visits to other 
Councils such as Warwickshire County Council, Dudley MBC and Bristol City Council. As 
the project has progresses the project team has sought opportunities to learn lessons from 
other local authority users of Agresso although it can be difficult to find a close match of 

Page 84



 

 5 

users who mirror precisely Coventry’s mix of services, proposed system functionality and 
intended transformation of financial administration processes.  
 

2.15 Internal Audit has been heavily involved in the project with the Audit and Risk Manager as 
a member of the Steering Group, providing advice on controls in addition to undertaking an 
assurance assessment of key aspects of the project (e.g. risk and project management). 
The Audit and Risk Manager has also been involved in discussions with the Council’s 
external auditors and one of their colleagues who is responsible for the audit of an authority 
that has implemented Agresso to share their learning from that implementation.  

 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 
 
3.1 On-going communication and consultation has been undertaken ay key stages with senior 

managers and budget holders across the Council in relation to the new financial 
information system. 

 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 

 
4.1 The risks outlined and the mitigating actions all apply to the 2013/14 financial year. 
 
5. Comments from Director of Finance and Legal Services 
 
5.1 Financial implications 
 The report covers matters that are wholly related to financial issues. 
 
5.2 Legal implications 
 There are no specific legal implications in relation to the report. 
 
6. Other implications 
 
 None 
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 

priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)? 

 
This report covers matters referred to within the Council Plan under the banner of 
Improving how we work as a Council and specifically using resources effectively. 

 
6.2 How is risk being managed? 
6.3  

The substance of this report covers how the Council is dealing with a range of high level 
risks within the Council. The governance structures surrounding Business Rates and 
Financial Information System replacement are subject to specific risk register approaches. 
The Medium Term Financial Position is one of the risks included within the Corporate Risk 
Register.  

 
6.4 What is the impact on the organisation? 

 
Failure to deal adequately with the risks outlined could have significant risks, in particular 
financial risks for the Council. 
 
 
 

 

Page 85



 

 6 

6.5 Equalities / EIA  
 
The Council’s fundamental service reviews have their equality impacts assessed before 
they are implemented.  

 
6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment 
 
 None 
 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 
 

The Council is participating in a Business Rate Pool with Warwickshire County Council and 
all the district councils within Warwickshire. 

 
 
Report author(s): 
 
Name and job title: 
Paul Jennings, Finance Manager (Corporate Finance) 
 
Directorate: 
Resources 
 
Tel and email contact: 
02476 833753 paul.jennings@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors:     

Stephen Mangan Audit and Risk 
Manager 

Finance & Legal 
Services 

  

Andy Williams     

Joy Smith     

Barrie Strain     

Hugh Peacocke     

Joe Sansom Project Manager 
FLS Money 
Matters Project 

Finance & Legal 
Services 

  

Names of approvers for 
submission: (officers and 
members) 

    

Barry Hastie Assistant Director 
Financial 
Management 

Finance & Legal 
Services 

  

 
 

This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings  
 
 

Page 86



abc 

 

 

 

Public Report 
Audit and Procurement Committee 

 

 
 

 

 

Cabinet Member (Community Safety & Equalities) 5 September 2013 
Audit & Procurement Committee 16 September 2013 
 
Name of Cabinet Member:  
Cabinet Member (Community Safety & Equalities) – Councillor Townshend 
 
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Executive Director, People’s Directorate 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
None 
 
Title: 
Annual Compliance Report - Regulatory & Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) & 
Revised RIPA Policy for Covert Surveillance & Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
(CHIS) 
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
No 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
To provide: 

• An annual report to the Cabinet Member (Community Safety & Equalities), on the 
Council’s compliance with the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, as per 
sections 10.3 of the current Covert Surveillance & Covert Human Intelligence 
Sources Policy; and 

• A revised policy, which takes into account changes as a result of the amendments 
to the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act as a result of the Protection of 
Freedoms Act 2012. 

 
Recommendations: 

 
That the Cabinet Member: 
 
(1) Considers and notes the report and requests the Audit & Procurement Committee 

receive the report for formal assurance that the Council continues to use its powers 
under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 in a lawful manner. 
 

(2) Recommends the Audit & Procurement Committee approves the revised policy. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 87



 

 2 

 
List of Appendices included: 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 Covert Surveillance & Covert Human 
Intelligence Sources Policy 
 
Other useful background papers: 
Nil 
 
Other useful background information: 
Nil 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
No  
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory 
Panel or other body?  
Yes 
Audit & Procurement Committee – 16 September 2013 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
No  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 

 3 

Report title:   Annual Compliance Report - Regulatory & Investigatory Powers Act 
(RIPA) & Revised RIPA Policy for Covert Surveillance & Covert Human Intelligence 
Sources (CHIS) 
 
1. Context (or background) 
 
1.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) enables local authorities to 

carry out certain types of surveillance activity, as long as specified procedures are 
followed. The Act sets out a compliance structure within which Coventry City 
Council can use directed surveillance techniques to support core function activities 
(eg typically those undertaken by Trading Standards, Environmental Health, Benefit 
Fraud). The information obtained as a result of surveillance operations can later be 
relied upon in court proceedings providing RIPA is complied with. 
 

1.2 Since 1 November 2012 the Council’s ability for core functions to exercise their 
powers under RIPA have been restricted to offences which may be punishable by a 
custodial sentence of 6 months, OR are related to the underage sale of alcohol and 
tobacco.  Furthermore, since that date, such applications, including renewals, have 
required judicial approval. 
 

1.3 The role of the Magistrate is to ensure that the correct procedures have been 
followed and the relevant factors have been taken into account. The new provisions 
allow the Magistrate, on refusing an approval of an authorisation, to quash that 
authorisation 
 

2. Use of Covert Surveillance or Covert Human Intelligence Sources During 2012 
 

2.1 For the period 1 January – 31 December 2012, the Council authorised 7 requests 
and refused 1.  The following provides an overview of the applications: 
 
5 approved requests covering – premises suspected of selling tobacco to persons 
under the age of 18 
 
2 approved requests covering – premises suspected of selling illegal cigarettes 
 
1 rejected* request covering – premises suspected of selling illegal cigarettes. 
 
* The request was rejected as evidence that offences had been committed had 
been identified and appropriate action taken.  Further surveillance was therefore not 
necessary. 
 
0 requests during 1 November to 31 December 2012, which would have required 
judicial approval. 
 

2.2 All of the requests covered core functions permitted by the Act and were for the 
purpose of preventing and detecting crime. 
 

2.3 There were no instances where confidential information was obtained. 
 

2.4 There were no reported instances of the Council having misused its powers under 
the Act 

Page 89



 

 4 

3. Acquisition & Disclosure of Communications Data 
 

3.1 For the period 1 January – 31 December 2012, the following applications were 
submitted to the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN), who act as the Council’s 
Single Point of Contact (SPoC): 
 
5 applications and 7 authorisations to acquire communications data relating to 
service or subscriber data and processed by the Council’s SPoC (NAFN) 
 
0 requests during 1 November to 31 December 2012, which would have required 
judicial approval 
 

3.1 All of the requests covered core functions permitted by the Act and were for the 
purpose of preventing and detecting crime. 
 

3.2 There were no instances where confidential information was obtained. 
 

3.3 There were no reported instances of the Council having misused its powers under 
the Act. 
 

4. RIPA Training & Scheme of Delegation 
 

4.1 The Council worked closely with Coventry Magistrates’ Court in order to implement 
the required changes.  This included: 
 

• Providing RIPA training on 19 November 2012 to the relevant officers from the 
Council and the Magistrates’ Court; 
 

• Amending the scheme of delegation in order to allow the relevant officers to 
present their applications to the Magistrates’ Court. 
 

5. Revised Policy for Covert Surveillance & Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
 

5.1 A review of the Council’s policy for Covert Surveillance and Covert Human 
Intelligence Sources has been undertaken. (Refer to Appendix 1). The most 
significant change being the inclusion of the role of the Magistrates’ Court and 
ensuring policy continues to reflect guidance provided by the Home Office and 
Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC). 
 

5.2 A review of the Council's Authorising Officers has been undertaken. 
 
5. Comments from Director of Finance and Legal Services 
 
5.1 Financial implications – There are no direct financial implications arising from 

these changes. 
 
5.2 Legal implications – Legislative changes to the current RIPA provisions were 

introduced by The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 and The Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers (Directed Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence 
Sources) (Amendment) Order 2012, which amended the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers (Directed Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources) Order 
2010, SI 2010/521. 

Page 90



 

 5 

 
Periodic review of RIPA Policy and guidance is necessary to ensure that the 
Council’s obligations are met. Consideration and endorsement by Members 
ensures that appropriate scrutiny is in place. Consideration of RIPA activity as 
recommended by the OSC guidance ensures that such activity is subject to 
appropriate scrutiny and control. 
 
The new process requiring attendance at the Magistrates Court is regarded as a 
‘legal proceeding’. Officers from relevant service areas have been authorised to 
undertake such proceedings and attend Court by the Assistant Director, Legal 
Services. 

 
6. Other implications 

 
 While the changes in law have introduced an additional step into the process, given 

the Council's low use of its powers under RIPA, it is not expected to result in any 
significant delays for planned operations.  Routine patrols, observation at trouble 
‘hot spots’, immediate response to events and overt use of CCTV do not require 
RIPA authorisation. 

 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / 

corporate priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / 
Local Area Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)? 

 
 As and when judicial approval is sought to use these powers, it will help support the 

Council's core aims by preventing and detecting crime associated with enforcement 
activities such as:  investigations relating to counterfeiting and fraudulent trading 
activity, or underage sales of alcohol or tobacco.    
 

6.2 How is risk being managed? 
  
 The requirement for the Council to seek judicial approval for any proposed use of its 

powers under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, as amended by the 
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012, reduces the risk of the Council using such 
powers inappropriately or unlawfully. This will help ensure any evidence gained 
from such use will be admissible in a court of law. 

  
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 
 

There is no additional impact on the Council.   
 
6.4 Equalities / EIA  
 

When developing or amending policies and procedures to support the use of 
directed surveillance, or the use of a Covert Human Intelligence Source, 
consideration is given to any impact on equalities.    

 
6.5 Implications for (or impact on) the environment? 

 
There are no implications on the environment. 

 

Page 91



 

 6 

6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 
 
There are no implications on partner organisations.  

 
Report author(s):  
 
Name and job title: S Brake, Assistant Director, Policy & Performance and Caldicott 
Guardian 
 
Directorate: Resources Directorate 
 
Tel and email contact: 024 7683 1652 simon.brake@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors:     

H Simmonds Head of 
Regulatory 
Services 

People 
Directorate 

22/8/2013 22/8/2013 

C Hickin Head of 
Environment
al Services  

People 
Directorate 

22/8/2013 22/8/2013 

J Hutchings Information 
Governance 
Manager 

Resource 
Directorate 

22/8/013 22/8/2013 

Other members      

     

Names of approvers 
for submission: 
(officers and members) 

    

Finance: E Dewar Finance 
Manager 

Resources 
Directorate 

22/8/2013 22/8/2013 

Legal: A Bajaj Solicitor Resources 
Directorate 

22/8/2013 22/8/2013 

Legal: H Lynch  Governance 
& Litigation 
Manager 

Resources 
Directorate 

22/8/2013 22/8/2013 

Members: Councillor 
Townshend 

Councillor Coventry City 
Council 

  

 
 
This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings  
 
Appendices: 
1. RIPA Covert Surveillance and Cover Human Intelligence Source Policy 

Page 92



Page 1 of 6 
Unclassified - Uncontrolled When Printed 

 

UNCLASSIFIED 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
Covert Surveillance & 

Covert Human Intelligence Sources Policy 
Status/Version: 7.0 For Approval 

Effective:  
 

 

 1  Policy Statement Objective 
 

 1.1  The objective of this policy is support Coventry City Council’s (the Council) 
compliance with Part 2 of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA), 
Chapter 2 of Part 2 of the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012, the Human Rights Act 
1998 (HRA) and Data Protection Act 1998 when carrying out covert surveillance 
and conducting or using covert human intelligence sources (CHIS), (hereinafter 
collectively known as ‘directed surveillance’).   

 
 1.2  Only core functions within Coventry City Council are authorised to use directed 

surveillance, under RIPA,  in order to prevent and detect criminal offences that 
are either punishable by a maximum term of at least 6 months’ imprisonment OR 
criminal offences relating to the underage sale of alcohol and tobacco.   

 
 

 2  Audience 
 
 2.1  This policy applies to the following: 
 

i) Employees, including temporary, contractual and agency involved with 
requesting, authorising, undertaking or monitoring requests for covert 
surveillance;  

ii) Members in their role of endorsing and monitoring compliance with this policy; 
 
 2.2  For ease of reference, the term 'users' will be used throughout this policy to reflect 

2.1 
 
 
 3  In Scope 
 
 3.1  This policy covers directed surveillance for: 
 

i) Core functions, eg enforcement activities undertaken by Trading Standards; 
ii) Surveillance that is likely to result in obtaining private information about a person; 

and  
iii) Use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS); 

 

Page 93



Page 2 of 6 
Unclassified - Uncontrolled When Printed 

 
 4  Out of Scope 
 
 4.1  Routine patrols, observations at trouble ‘hot spots’, immediate response to events 

and overt use of CCTV. 
 
 4.2  Part 1 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 - The Acquisition & Disclosure 

of Communications Data is covered by a separate policy. 

 4.3  The covert and overt surveillance and monitoring of employees is covered by the 
Information Commissioner’s Employment Code of Practice, Section 3: Monitoring 
of Employees.  

 
 
 5  Implementation 

 
 5.1  This policy has been developed in consultation with representatives from those 

departments covered by section 3 of this policy. 
 
 5.2  This policy is operational from the date of approval and replaces any previous 

version. 
 
 
 6  Risks 

 
 6.1  The Council recognises that there are risks associated when conducting directed 

surveillance.  This policy aims to help mitigate risks such as: 
 

i) Unlawful use of directed surveillance or CHIS; 
ii) Disproportionate and unnecessary use; 
iii) Inappropriate and/or unlawful use of information relating to directed surveillance 

activities; 
iv) Inadequate safeguards for test purchasers or CHISs; 
v) Inappropriate or ineffective monitoring of the Council’s use of RIPA Part II; 
vi) Inadequate protection of private information about a person; 
vii) Inadequate procedures and training supporting this policy 

 
 
 7  Other Relevant Documents 
 
 7.1  The following documents have specific relevance to this policy:  
 

i) Home Office Guidance to Local Authorities on the Judicial Approval Process 
ii) Home Office Guidance for Magistrates’ Courts for a Local Authority Application 

Seeking an Order Approving the Grant or Renewal of a RIPA Authorisation or 
Notice 

iii) Home Office Application forms  
iv) Home Office Approval/Order Form for the Magistrates’ Court 
v) Internal Procedures & Guidance for RIPA Covert Surveillance & CHIS 
vi) Human Rights Act 1998 

Page 94



Page 3 of 6 
Unclassified - Uncontrolled When Printed 

vii) Data Protection Act Policy  
 

 7.2  The above is not an exhaustive list and it is the user's responsibility to seek further 
guidance if required.  

 
 8  Policy  

 
 8.1  Directed surveillance will only be used for the purpose of preventing and detecting 

crime where it is proposed to use it to investigate offences that are punishable by a 
maximum term of at least 6 months imprisonment, OR are related to the underage 
sale of alcohol or tobacco. Examples of enforcement activities which may need to 
use directed surveillance include:  Trading Standards investigations relating to 
counterfeiting and fraudulent trading activity, benefit fraud.  The Council will not 
seek to use directed surveillance under RIPA to investigate offences such as 
littering, dog control and fly-posting. 
 

 8.2  The use of such powers will also give due regard to current and relevant 
legislation, and will ensure it complies fully with other applicable laws: 
 
i) Human Rights Act 1998 
ii) Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 
iii) Data Protection Act 1998 

 
 8.3  The Council shall also have due regard to relevant official guidance, particularly 

those issued by the Home Office, the Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC), 
the Surveillance Camera Commissioner and the Information Commissioner. 
 

 8.4  Only directed surveillance requests that have taken into account the requirements 
of this policy will be submitted for judicial approval.  Such requests should 
demonstrate that:  
 
i) Directed surveillance is deemed necessary in order to achieve the desired 

objective 
ii) Directed surveillance is only undertaken where it is proportionate to do so and in 

a manner that is proportionate to the objective 
iii) Adequate regard has been given to the rights and freedoms of the individuals, 

including those who are not the focus of the directed surveillance 
iv) An Authorising Officer has reviewed and endorsed the application 
v) No directed surveillance activities have taken place before judicial approval has 

been received. 
 

 8.5  Officers of appropriate seniority, eg Director, Head of Service, Service Manager or 
equivalent, will be appointed as the RIPA Monitoring Officer and Authorised 
Officers.  Roles and responsibilities of such officers and supporting areas will be 
included in the Council’s internal procedural guidance. 
 

 8.6  A CHIS or test-purchaser will only be used if the information sought cannot be 
reasonably obtained by other means. When considering such requests, a risk 
assessment will be undertaken in order to safeguard the individual from harm or 
exploitation.  

Page 95



Page 4 of 6 
Unclassified - Uncontrolled When Printed 

 
 8.7  If in exceptional circumstances a proposed CHIS is a vulnerable individual and/or 

under the age of 18, approval must be sought from the Chief Executive, or their 
delegated deputy. 
 

 8.8  When applying for an authorisation, the applicant will need to give consideration of 
any particular sensitivity in the local community where the surveillance will be 
taking place and any similar surveillance activities other agencies may be 
undertaking. 
 

 8.9  Surveillance equipment will only be used when sufficient evidence has been 
documented to warrant the exercise. 

 
 8.10  All applications, renewals or cancellations will comply with the timescales outlined 

in the Home Office Code of Practice. 
 

 8.11  Council enforcement staff and officers will have recourse to supporting procedures, 
which have been approved by the RIPA Monitoring Officer and Authorised Officers, 
and other guidance and resources which will be made available internally to 
enforcement officers.   
 

 8.12  All Council officers and staff undertaking or authorising directed surveillance shall 
be appropriately trained to ensure that they understand their legal obligations and 
the framework in which their decisions are made. 
 

 8.13  Requests from external agencies wishing to access the Council’s facilities and/or 
CCTV equipment for a planned covert operation, must provide a copy of their 
organisation’s authorised RIPA form and, where relevant, judicial approval, before 
access is granted. 
 

 8.14  This policy shall be reviewed on a regular basis by the RIPA Monitoring Officer in 
conjunction with the Information Governance Manager and Legal Services to 
ensure it reflects current developments and changes to official guidance and codes 
of practice. 
 

 8.15  A nominated Cabinet Member will be responsible for endorsing this policy for 
approval by the responsible Committee. The Committee will be responsible for 
approving the policy and undertaking an annual review of the Council’s compliance 
with RIPA and relevant legislation. 

 
 
 9  RIPA Monitoring Officer 

 
 9.1  The Council’s RIPA Monitoring Officer is the Senior Responsible Officer 

   
 
 

Page 96



Page 5 of 6 
Unclassified - Uncontrolled When Printed 

 
 10  Judicial Approval & Inspection 
 
 10.1  The Council's use of directed surveillance is subject to judicial approval by the 

Coventry Magistrates’ Court.  
 

 10.2  Ad hoc external inspections are undertaken by the OSC. 
 
 

 11  Document Review 
 
 11.1  The Information Governance Team has responsibility, in conjunction with other 

relevant departments, for coordinating the maintenance and review of this policy 
and supporting framework.  Such reviews will take into account changes in 
legislation and supporting Codes of Practice and lessons learnt.   

 
 
 12  Notes 
 
 12.1  Enquiries regarding this policy should be directed to the Information Governance 

Team at infogov@coventry.gov.uk or phone: (024) 7683 3323. 
 
 
 

Page 97



Page 6 of 6 
Unclassified - Uncontrolled When Printed 

 

Document Control: 
Version History 

Version Status Date Author Summary of Changes 

7.0 For 
Approval 

August 
2013 

J Hutchings Initial document incorporating 
changes from the Protection of 
Freedoms Act 2000; RIPA 
requests from 3rd party agencies 
 

 
Reviewers 

Name Role Business Area 

A Harwood Trading Standards Business 
Compliance Manager 

People Directorate 

H Simmonds Head of Regulatory Services People Directorate 

C Hickin Head of Environmental 
Services 
Public Safety & Housing 

People Directorate 

A Bajaj Senior Solicitor Resources Directorate 

C Donovan Information Governance 
Officer 

Resources Directorate 

 
Management Review 

Name Role Business Area 

S Brake Assistant Director, Policy & 
Performance/Caldicott 
Guardian (RIPA Monitoring 
Officer & Senior Responsible 
Officer) 

People Directorate / Chair of 
JIST 

C Forde Assistant Director, Legal 
Services 

Resources Directorate 

S Roach Deputy Director, Strategy & 
Communities 

Resources Directorate 

H Abraham Assistant Director, 
Democratic Services 

Resources Directorate 

 
Member Approval 

Name Date 

Cllr Townshend Cabinet Meeting (Community 
Safety & Equalities) 

5 September 2013 
 

Audit & Procurement Committee 16 September 2013 

 
Distribution 

Name Organisational Department Format 
All Intranet Word Document 

 

Page 98



Agenda Item 11

Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



A
genda Item

 12

P
age 101

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 102

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	3.b Draft minutes 19 August (JEEP)

	4 Outstanding Issues and Work Programme 2013/14
	4 a- Outstanding Issues 23.09.13
	4 b - Work Programme 2013 - 14

	5 Audit Findings Report, 2012/13
	6 Statement of Accounts 2012/13
	7 Revenue Monitoring Report and Corporate Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report 2012/13
	8 Annual Audit Letter Update (Audit 2011/12)
	9 RIPA (Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act) Annual Report
	9.1. Appendix- RIPA Covert Sur and CHIS Policy v7 0 For Approval (2)

	11 Confirmation of Minutes
	12 Procurement - Monthly Progress Report

